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2024 10
1,077,615 36.1
315,684 10.6
1,469,028 49.2
2,862,327 95.9
122,261 4.1
2,984,588 100.0
2024 10
RAPYUTA ROBOTICS
12,049 |21,000.00 253,029,000 |26,200.00 315,683,800 7.
/IPY/
TAIWAN
SEMICONDUCTOR MAN 29,000 | 2,626.43 76,166,389 | 4,896.84 142,008,353 3.
/TWD/
ISHARES MSCI INDIA
ETF 16,069 | 5,790.80 93,052,443 | 8,350.46 134,183,484 3.
TENCENT HOLDINGS 11,400 | 6,159.79 70,221,549 | 7,927.39 90,372,236 2
LTD /HKD/ ’ 2199 221, ,927. ,372, .
HITACHI LTD /JPY/ 22,500 | 1,425.97 32,084,270 | 3,924.00 88,290,000 2.
ICICT BANK LTD- 15,383 | 3,474.49 53,448,049 | 4,632.20 71,257,182 1
SPON ADR , 2ala. ,448, ,632. ,257, .
NOWURA RESEARCH 14,300 | 3,392.26 48,509,333 | 4,592.00 65,665,600 1
INSTITUT /JPY/ ’ T T T T :
SAMSUNG
TechHW
ELECTRONICS CO L 9,507 | 7,344.95 69,828,473 | 6,534.52 62,123,697 1.
/KRW/
SK HYNIX INC /KRW/ 2,962 |14,906.68 44,153,578 [20,563.87 60,910,196 1.
10 | OBIC CO LTD /JPY/ 11,000 | 4,408.15 48,489,690 | 4,991.00 54,901,000 1.
SONY GROUP CORP
11 20,000 | 2,591.45 51,828,976 | 2,723.50 54,470,000 1.
/IPY/
12 | EBARA CORP /JPY/ 23,000 | 1,229.22 28,272,016 | 2,350.50 54,061,500 1.
13 | HDFC BANK LTD-ADR 5,611 | 9,000.67 50,502,749 | 9,601.04 53,871,462 1.
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AIA GROUP LTD
14 44,600 | 1,260.02 56,196,932 | 1,204.00 53,698,363 1.3
/HKD/
15 | BIPROGY INC /JPY/ 10,800 | 2,776.33 29,984,350 | 4,848.00 52,358,400 1.2
16 BANK RAKYAT 1,094,800 46.47 50,874,323 46.59 51,001,844 1.2
INDONESIA PE /IDR/ U : T . U .
DENTSU SOKEN INC
17 9,100 | 4,237.73 38,563,321 | 5,460.00 49,686,000 1.2
/IPY/
ADVANTEST CORP
18 5,300 | 2,227.35 11,804,956 | 9,148.00 48,484,400 1.1
/IPY/
19 | HOYA CORP /JPY/ 2,200 |15,367.86 33,809,295 [20,725.00 45,595,000 1.1
20 | DENSO CORP /JPY/ 20,000 | 2,160.65 43,213,002 | 2,217.00 44,340,000 1.0
21 NIPPON TELEGRAPH & 297,500 132.83 39,515,610 147.70 43,940,750 1.0
TELEP /JPY/ , . ,915, . ,940, .
22 SHIN-ETSU CHEMICAL 7,500 | 3,424.82 25,686,160 | 5,755.00 43,162,500 1.0
CO LT /JPY/ 4 ’ - , , , - , , B
23 | MEDIATEK INC /TWD/ 7,000 | 4,737.86 33,165,005 | 6,132.94 42,930,547 1.0
24 | MAKEMYTRIP LTD 2,621 | 7,177.66 18,812,651 |15,459.46 40,519,255 | 0.9
25 DELTA ELECTRONICS 20,000 | 1,766.01 35,320,247 | 1,920.70 38,414,044 | 0.9
INC /TWD/ , » 06 ,320, ,920. ,414, B
RENESAS
26 | ELECTRONICS CORP 17,900 | 1,570.94 28,119,743 | 2,110.00 37,769,000 0.9
/3IPY/
27 HANGZHOU FIRST PV 93,200 307.42 28,651,294 398.34 37,125,683 0.9
MATERI /CNH/ ’ . T : T .
28 | BYD CO LTD-H /HKD/ 6,500 | 4,407.11 28,646,209 | 5,513.51 35,837,834 0.8
SAMSUNG
TechHW
29 | ELECTRONICS PRF 6,764 | 5,797.51 39,214,380 | 5,292.74 35,800,105 0.8
/KRW/
30 | TOPCON CORP /JPY/ 22,800 | 1,660.08 37,849,819 | 1,570.00 35,796,000 0.8
2024 10
2024 10
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2023 11 2024 10
5,525,314 12,684
2021 30
4,053,937 10,514
2022 30
3,769,159 10,861
2023 30
3,475,397 12,412
2024 30
2023 11 3,555,865 10,641
12 3,556,824 10,657
2024 3,533,331 10,747
3,703,517 11,444
3,620,908 11,735
3,515,278 11,852
3,430,317 11,832
3,475,397 12,412
3,193,138 11,543
3,107,026 11,344
3,077,357 11,796
10 2,984,588 12,110
26.8
2020 29 2021
-17.1
2021 2022
3.3
2022 2023
14.3
2023 2024
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435,609 0 435,609
2020 29
435,609 0 435,609
2021
50,037 385,572
2021
50,037 385,572
2022
0 38,520 347,052
2022 ) (38,520) (347,052)
2023 ’ ’
0 67,045 280,007
2023 0 (67,045) (280,007)
2024 ’ ’
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2024 30 2023 30
2.2 5 6 ¥ 3,353,425,233 ¥ 3,599,999,705
2.1 139,154,368 169,731,746
130,795 3,744,313
2.4 12,138,573 7,447,564
5,897,421 8,669,860
3,510,746,390 3,789,593,188
2.1 10,032 38,065
2.8 3 57,063,900 2,148,000
8.1E 6,202,941 2,018,853
8.2E 6,061,466 6,317,270
8.1C 5,195,548 5,414,788
8.1B 2,289,999 2,207,126
8.2B 1,731,840 1,804,925
1,254,172 642,458
8.1A 956,301 701,150
553,674 75,201
8.2D 192,302 195,951
8.1D 127,341 165,352
2.4 1,023 7,429,422
2,361,000 1,069,557
84,001,539 30,228,118

¥ 3,426,744,851 ¥ 3,759,365,070
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SBI-PICTET
2020 29
2020 12 31
2024 30 2023 30
FupL®
2.11 ¥ 58,924,284 ¥ 75,917,622
211 7 (133,404,269) (361,384,675)
211 7 422,664,949 251,713,795
2.6 219,623,169 233,604,423
2.6 (241,309) 497,532
567,566,824 200,438,697
8.2E 24,976,858 26,320,114
8.1C 21,408,756 22,560,086
8.1E 8,554,846 5,313,164
8.28 7,136,247 7,520,018
8.1A 6,367,222 5,908,980
8.18 5,829,666 6,510,505
3,613,518 3,603,645
2.13 1,756,472 2,652,225
1,603,958 1,471,315
8.1D 968,324 952,285
611,714 563,560
8.2D 356,818 376,011
13,341,000 7,630,727
96,525,399 91,382,635
471,041,425 109,056,062
(91,456) (347,931)
470,949,969 108,708,131
2.12 (7,365,148) (9,018,954)
¥ 463,584,821 ¥ 99,689,177
) FVTPL
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30

2022 30 ¥ 4,054,157,863
2.8 (394,481,970)
99,689,177
2023 30 ¥ 3,759,365,070
2.8 (796,205, 040)
463,584,821

2024 30

¥  3,426,744,851
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o

2024 30 2023 30
¥ 463,584,821 ¥ 99,689,177
(1,279,725,553) (2,080,270,827)
1,815,560,705 2,264,847,279
13,558
133,404,269 361,384,675
(422,664,949) (251,713,795)
(4,691,009) 46,374,460
2,772,439 7,453,633
3,613,518 3,603,645
(7.428,399) (45,125,580)
@ 6,313,953 (8,572,911)
710,739,795 397,683,314
(741,289,140) (410,645,370)
(741,289, 140) (410,645,370)
(30,549,345) (12,962,056)
2.1 169,693,681 182,655,737
2.1 ¥ 139,144,336 ¥ 169,693, 681
¥ 61,696,723 ¥ 83,371,255
¥ (7.365,148) ¥ (9,018,954)
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
SBI-PICTET
2013 12
UBS (
(
2020
2020 29
2021 2014 22
2021
KY1-9005
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman
Islands
2021 12 CSC
2022 11 CsC

UBS
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UBS AG

UBS

SBI

UBS AG

SBI

Pictet

JPY
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

Al loT
4.0 56 5.0
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2024 30
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ETF

ADR
EDR
GDR

JPY JPY

791225
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2023 19 UBS AG UBS
FINMA AG
2023 12 UBS AG AG
AG AG UBS
AG UBS AG AG
UBS AG
AG
AG
UBS AG UBS AG AG
2024 31
UBS AG
2024 UBS
2024
2024 28
UBS

2024 10 31
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30

IFRS IFRS

IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27
2012
IFRS
FVTPL
FVOCI IFRS
FVTPL
FVTPL

SPPI
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

SPP1

FVTPL

SPPI
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30
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2024 30
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ECL

FVTPL

2023

2023

FVOCI

ECL

12
ECL

I1AS IFRS

2024 30
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2.1
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30
¥ 8,549,344 ¥ 15,446,543
130,605,024 154,285,203
¥ 139,154,368 ¥ 169,731,746
(10,032) (38,065)
¥ 139,144,336 ¥ 169,693,681
2.2
FVTPL

2024 30 2024 30
¥ 374,194,600 ¥ 351,729,000
2,979,230,633 2,274,768,797

¥ 3,353,425,233 ¥ 2,626,497,797
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2023 30

2023 30

353,051,200 ¥
3,246,948,505

351,729,000
2,944,008,218

3,599,999,705 ¥

3,295,737,218
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

EBITDA

2024 30 2023 30

2.3

2024 30 2023 30
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2.4

2.5

2.6
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

2.7

2024 30 2023 30
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

2.8

IAS 32

2024 30

2.9
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2.10
2.11 FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL

2.12

2063 12
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2024 30 2023 30
2024 2023
¥ 7,365,148 ¥ 9,018,954
IAS 12

2024 30 2023 30
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2.13
2024 30

2023 30

1,756,472 2,652,225
100
10,000
2

2024 30

¥  3,426,744,851 277,807 ¥ 12,334.9838

94/225



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o =K RS )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2023 30
¥ 3,759,365,070 347,052 ¥ 10,832.2818
2024 30 2023 30

100
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2024 30
¥ ¥ (796,205,040)
2023 30
¥ ¥ (394, 481,970)
2024 30 2023 30
2023 30 2024 30
347,052 (69,245) 277,807
2022 30 2023 30

385,572 (38,520) 347,052
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

5.1
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
IMF
2024 30
2024 30

CNH ¥ ¥ 141,308,431 ¥ (425) ¥ 141,308,006 4.1
CNY 535,665 5,857,156 6,392,821 0.2
HKD 742,624 444,955,319 2,422,212 448,120,155 13.1
IDR 55,585,944 55,585,944 1.6
KRW 309,605,692 575,849 310,181,541 9.1
SGD 16,958 53,143,192 53,160,150 1.6
TWD 321,254,239 1,154,480 322,408,719 9.4
usD 5,404,957 427,945,759 9,195,750 442,546,466 12.9
VND 7,987,683 20,491,951 28,479,634 0.8
14,687,887 1,780,147,683 13,347,866 1,808,183,436 52.8
JPY 124,456,449 1,573,277,550 (79,172,584) 1,618,561,415 47.2
¥ 139,144,336 ¥ 3,353,425,233 ¥ (65,824,718) ¥ 3,426,744,851 100.0
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2023 30
2021 30
2023 30
CNH ¥ ¥ 225,508,577 ¥ ¥ 225,508,577 6.0
CNY 17,341,257 17,341,257 0.4
HKD 187,487 642,367,565 2,782,299 645,337,351 17.2
IDR 101,226,025 101,226,025 2.7
KRW 269,708,739 497,966 270,206,705 7.2
SGD 10,313 64,611,900 64,622,213 1.6
WD 332,624,650 4,449,610 337,074,260 9.0
usb 2,754,607 284,392,096 (3,073,628) 284,073,075 7.6
VND 15,420,061 36,095,446 51,515,507 1.4
18,372,468 1,973,876,255 4,656,247 1,996,904,970 53.1
JPY 151,321,213 1,626,123,450 (14,984,563) 1,762,460,100 46.9
¥ 169,693,681 ¥ 3,599,999,705 ¥  (10,328,316) ¥  3,759,365,070 100.0
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30
CNH +/- 10.53 +/- ¥ 14,879,733
CNY +/- 10.76 +/- 687,868
HKD +/- 11.56 +/- 51,802,690
IDR +/- 2.07 +/- 1,150,629
KRW +/- 5.69 +/- 17,649,330
SGD +/- 10.81 +/- 5,746,612
TWD +/- 6.59 +/- 21,246,735
usD +/- 11.20 +/- 49,565,204
VND +/- 3.34 +/- 951,220
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2023 30

CNH +/- 1.69 +/- 3,811,095
CNY +/- 1.40 +/- 242,778
HKD +/- 6.84 +/- 44,141,075
IDR +/- 5.83 +/- 5,901,477
KRW +/- 5.03 +/- 13,591,397
SGD +/- 10.19 +/- 6,585,004
TWD +/- 2.14 +/- 7,213,389
uSsD +/- 6.73 +/- 19,118,118
VND +/- 5.39 +/- 2,776,686
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2024 30 2023 30 50

653,025 771,426
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

2024 30

¥ 66,450,904
88,129,865
324,732,253
27,315,000
103,218,295
28,502,681
244,257,571
26,311,646
37,552,832
21,135,451
248,334,117
27,892,631
32,070,142
27,402,694
27,444,829
27,456,000
40,960,200
92,032,617
43,897,880
288,919,901
81,022,500
479,194,361
8,976,000
9,089,865
24,106,130
672,425,678 19.
42,261,000 1.
45,160,500
167,171,690 4.
¥  3,353,425,233 97.
¥  3,353,425,233 97.
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

¥ 564,814,453 16.5
93,133,722 2.7
149,714,698 4.4
55,585,944 1.6
45,232,102 1.3
1,573,277,550 45.9
53,143,192 1.6
309,605,692 9.0
321,254,239 9.4
167,171,690 4.9
20,491,951 0.6

¥ 3,353,425,233 97.9
¥ 3,353,425,233 97.9
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

2023 30

¥ 48,414,411
67,755,000
445,857,225
9,655,700
27,686,400
64,057,862
132,263,656
46,680,455
227,036,624
71,669,326
267,376,681
97,212,591
48,967,718
10,422,654
18,870,000
77,468,400
165,840,356
23,050,424
294,449,461
57,824,000
386,565,941
6,978,000
42,788,442
38,977,197 1.
496,313,676 13.
101,436,147
85,067,279
41,143,949
198,170,130 5.
¥ 3,599,999,705 95.
¥ 3,599,999,705 95.
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
¥ 766,924,752 20.4
172,810,526 4.6
31,704,087 0.8
101,226,025 2.7
1,626,123,450 43.3
64,611,900 1.7
269,708,739 7.2
332,624,650 8.8
198,170,130 5.3
36,095,446 1.0
¥  3,599,999,705 95.8
¥  3,509,999,705 95.8
2024 30 2023 30
33,534,252 35,999,997
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2024 30 2023 30

2024 30
2023 30
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30

2024 30

¥ 10,032 ¥ ¥ 10,032

57,063,900 57,063,900

6,202,941 6,202,941

6,061,466 6,061,466

5,195,548 5,195,548

2,289,999 2,289,999

1,731,840 1,731,840

1,254,172 1,254,172

956,301 956,301

553,674 553,674

192,302 192,302

127,341 127,341

1,023 1,023

2,361,000 2,361,000

¥ 84,001,539 ¥ ¥ 84,001,539
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30

2023 30

¥ 38,065 ¥ ¥ 38,065

7,429,422 7,429,422

6,317,270 6,317,270

5,414,788 5,414,788

2,207,126 2,207,126

2,148,000 2,148,000

2,018,853 2,018,853

1,804,925 1,804,925

701,150 701,150

642,458 642,458

195,951 195,951

165,352 165,352

75,201 75,201

1,069,557 1,069,557

¥ 30,228,118 ¥ ¥ 30,228,118

15

2024 30 2023 30
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

5.2
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2024 30 2023 30

2024 30
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

5.3
IFRS 13
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2024 30
2024 30
2,979,230,633 - ¥ 374,194,600 ¥ 3,353,425,233
2,979,230,633 - ¥ 374,194,600 ¥ 3,353,425,233
2023 30
2023 30
3,246,948,505 - ¥ 353,051,200 ¥ 3,599,999,705
3,246,948,505 - ¥ 353,051,200 ¥ 3,599,999,705
2024 30 2023 30
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2022 30 ¥ 415,588,700
(62,537,500)
2023 30 ¥ 353,051,200
21,143,400
2024 30 ¥ 374,194,600
2024 30
2024 30
Rapyuta ¥ 293,995,600 30 50
Robotics (2023 : ¥ 214,472,200)
EV EBITDA 9.4 21.0 EV EBITDA
25
Infcurion ¥ 80,199,000 20 30
(2023 : ¥ 138,579,000)
EV Revenue 1.2 6.7 EV Revenue
25
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

2024 30 2023 30

100

2024 30 2023 30
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2024 30 2023 30
¥ (133,404,269) ¥ (361,398, 233)
13,558

¥ (133,404,269) ¥ (361,384,675)
¥ 422,664,949 ¥ 251,713,795
¥ 422,664,949 ¥ 251,713,795

8.1

$3,750 0.06
0.05 10 0.04
2024 30 2023 30

2024 30 2023 30
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30
0.60
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30
0.01 1 10
2024 30
2023 30 2024 30
2023 30
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30

8.2
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SBI-PICTET

2024 30

10,000
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30

0.20

2024 30
2023 30 2024 30 2023
30

24

PEP
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2024

30
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5,000

2024 30
2024 30
0.01
2024 30
2024 30
0.70

2024 30 2023

2024 30 2023 30
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SBI-PICTET
2024 30
10
2024 30 2023 30
10
2024 10 31
2024 2024 10 31 359,863,701
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund
Statement of Financial Position

Junuxﬂ, 2024
{Expressed in Japanaese Yen)

Agsots June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Financial assats at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 5, B) ¥ 3353425233 ¥ 3,599,989 705
Cash and cash equivelents (Nole 2.1) 138,154,368 168,731,746
Prepaid lecs 130,785 3744212
Receivables far:
Securities sold (Mola 2.4) 12,138,573 7447 554
Dividends 5397421 & G50 B0
Tolal assats 3,510,746, 3940 3783593184
Liabilities
Bank gverdrall (Mole 2.1) 10,032 36,065
Payablas for
Uinits repurchased (Mote 2.5, 3} 57,063,900 2,948,000
Professional fees (Mote 8.1E) 6,202,841 2.01B6.853
Investiment managemen fees (Nole 8.2E) 6,051 486 837270
Distribution fees (Note 8.1C) 5,185,548 5414 788
Cuslady faas (Nata 8.18) 2 280 890 2207 128
Fee agent fees (Nota 8.28) 1,731,840 1,804,825
Registration fees 1,254,172 642,458
Administrator fees (Mole 8.1A) 956,301 701,150
Printing feas 553674 75,201
Agenl member company fees (Nole 8.20) 192,302 185,851
Trangfer agoenl fees (Mote 8.1D) 127341 165,352
Securities purchasad (Note 2.4) 1.023 7429422
Other Habilities 2,361,000 1,068 557
Liabilities (excluding equity) 84.001.533 J0,228 118
Equity [beding net assets attributable to the halder of redeamable wnits) ¥ 3426744851 ¥ 1,739,365.070

The accompanying notes ara an intagral part of thasa financial statements,
1
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Income _ WJune 30,2024 June 30, 2023
Het incomaffloss) from financial instruments at FYTRL™
Divigesnd income (Note 2.11) ¥ 58,924,284 ¥ 75,917 622
Mt realized (lass) on financial assels and Habflifes at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 211, 7) {133,404 289) (351,354 675)
Mat changa in unrealized appraciation on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profil or foss (Mote 2,11, T) 422,634 040 251,713,705
Mel realized gain on foreign curmency lransactions (Note 2.8) 219,623 168 2331 694 423
Met change s unrealized (depreciation)fappreciation on forsign ciemancy
translations (Mate 2.6) (241,308) 437,532
Tolal income EGT. 565024 200,438 837
Expenscs
Invastmant management fees (Noda 8.2E) 24 876,858 26,320,114
Diistribution fees (Mols 8.1C) 21,408,758 22,260,088
Professional fees (Note 8.1E) B.554 848 5313 164
Fae agenl fees (Note B.28) 7.135.247 7,520,018
Administeator fees (Mote 8.1A) 8,367,222 5,008 280
Custody fees (Mate 8.18) 5,626 666 6,510,505
Organization expanses 1613518 3,603,645
Transaclion fees (MNolz 2.13) 1,786,472 2652225
Printing feas 1603 958 1.471.315
Transter agent faas (Mola 8.10D) 68,324 52 285
Registration fees 611,714 563,560
Agent mamber company fees (Naote & 20) 356,818 376,011
Othar axpansas 13,341,000 7.630,727
Total axpanses 86,525,308 1,382 635
Oparating profit bofore financo costs 471,041,425 108,056 (62

Finance cosls

Interest expense {91,456) (347.931)
Profit after distributions and before tax 470,949 859 108, 708,131
‘Wilhholding lax expanses (Mole 2.12) {7.365,148) (9,018,954)
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable
to the holder of redeemable units from operations) ¥ 453,534 821 ¥ 99,689,177

VI This relates to net inceme from financial instruments measured al fair value through profl or loss (FYTPL?) inchuding realized and
unraalired gainsossas on financial assats and labdities al fair value through profit or loss end dividend income.

The accompanying notes ara an intagral part of these financial statements,
2
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Endad Juna 30, 2024
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(Expressed in Japanese Yan)

At June 30, 2022

¥ 4,054,157 863

Repurchases of units (Mole 2.8, 3) (394 431,570}
Todal comprehensive incoma (baing incraass in net assets

attrinutabia fo the holder of redeamable units from operations) 99,689,177
At June 30, 2023 ¥ 3,759,365,070
Repunchases of units (Note 2.8, 3) (796,205, 040)
Tolal comprehensive income (being increase in net assels

alrbutable 1o the holder of redeemable units from operations) 4653 564 821
At June 30, 2024 ¥ 3426744 851

The accompanying noles are an infegral par of these financial staterments.
3
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{Expressed in Japanase Yen)

Cash flows from oporating activities: Jure 30, 2024 ) June 30, 2023
Tatal comprahansiva incomea (baing increase In net assais affibulable
to tha halder of redeamakhle units from operations) ¥ 453,584,821 ¥ 98,689,177

Adjustmants to reconcile tolal comprehensive income (being ncrease
Inv et assets aitributable o the holder of redeemable unils from
operations) to cash provided by operaling aclities;

Purchases of mvastmants in listed and unlisted private aquity

securities {1,279,725,553) (2,080,270,827)
Proceads from disposition of invesimants In listad securites 1.8155560.705 2,284 B4T 279
Med procesds from setllament of forward conlracts - 13,568
Nt realized loss on financial assels and babehites at faw vadue
through profit or lass 133,404 258 361,384,675
Mat change in unraalized appraciation on financial assats and
liakilifas at falr valua through profit or loss {422 564,543) (251,713,795)
{Increasa)/decrease in receivables lor securities sold (4.691.009) 46374 450
Decrease in receivables for dividends 27712429 TAS3EID
Decreass in propaid foos 1613618 31603645
[Dacreasa) in payablas for securities purchasad (7.428,388) (45,125,530
Increasel{dacrease] in othar payables'™ 6,313,853 (3.572.811)
Het cash provided by operating activities 710,730,795 307.683.314
Cazh Mows fram financing activithon:

Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for unils repurchasad (T41.288,140) (410,645,370}
Net cash (used in) financing activitics (741,289, 140) (410 545.370)
Hat {decreass) In cash and cash equivalants {30,548,345) {12 562 056)
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year (Maote 2.1) 164,593,681 182 655737
Caszh and cash equivalents at end of year [Note 2.1) X 139, 144,336 i 168,693 681

Supplamantary infarmation on cash flows from oparating activities
Dividands receved ¥ 61,696,723 B3.5371,255
Withhaldineg tax ) (7,355 148) ¥ i0,018,954)

«®

" Other payables comprise of investment management fees, distribution feas, fap agent feas. professional faes, custody fees,

administrator fees, registalion fees, transfer agent fees, printing fees and agent member company leas as disclosad in the
Slatement of Financial Position.

The accompanying notes ane an inlegral part of these linancial stalements.
4
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SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

{Exprossed in Japanese Yen)

1. ORGANIZATION

SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Vanturs Fund (tha “Saries Trust™) is a Series Trust of UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) Il
(formarly Cradit Suissa Universal Trust (Cayman) I} (lhe *Trust’). an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a
Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman lslands law. The Seres Trust was establizhed pursuant
to a Supplemental Trusl Daad dated March 5, 2020 and axecuted by Elian Trestee (Cayman) Limited (the "Trustee®),
& trust company incorporaled under the laws of the Cayman lslands. The Series Trusl commenced operations on
July 29, 2020 and unless previously terminated in accordance with the provisions described in the section of tha
Offering Memorandum headed “Termination of any Series Trusl", the Seres Trust will continug until the Final
Repurchase Day baing the earliest practicable repurchase day following the first occurrence of any of the following,
the net assat value ["Net Asset Value®) being the value of its total assets minus its labilites including accrued fees
and expanses) on any Valuation Day is in respect of JPY Class Units JPY 100,000,000 or lass and on that valuation
day ar thersafter the Manager determines that all of the units of such class of units should be compulsorily
repurchased by giving notice o all unitholders, or the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the umils of such
class of unils should be compulsorly repurchasad (this may include, bul is not limited ta, circumstancas whare the
Trustea and tha Manager agree to compulsadily rapurchase all of the units far whatavar raason an or after five years
following the Intial Closing Day, each a *Compulsory Repurchase Event”.

Tha Trust is an exampled unit trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and registered under
the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Nexus Viay, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
K¥1-8005, Cayman lzslands.

On December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company ("CSC7) announced thal a conditional agreement had been
rzached on a recommended public offer for all issued and cutstanding ordinary shares of Intertrust Group of which
the Trustee is a wholly owned subsidiary. In November 2022, C5C closed on its acquisition of Infertrust Group

The Manager of the Senes Trust is UBS Management (Ceyman) Limited (formerly Credit Suisse Management
(Cayman) Limited) (the “Manager’)

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust is Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. (the
“Administrator”, *Custodian® and *Transfar Agent”).

UES AG, Landon Branch (CUBS AG”) acls as the Fee Agent (tha “Fee Agent’)

UBS Securilies Japan Cao. LId. acts as the Agent Membar Cempany (the *Agent Member Company”),

Tha Invastmant Managar of the Sarias Trust is SB1 Assel Managemeant Co., Lid. (the “Investmant Managar®).

The Sub-Investimant Manager of the Series Trust is Pictel Asset Management 84 (the “Sub-lnvesiment Managsr’).

The Manager has suthorized 58| SECURITIES Co., Lid. to act as the Distributor {the "Distributor™) of the units in
Japan,

The Series Trust is denominated In Japanesea Yen ("Yen®, “JPY" or "&") and units are denominated in Yen,

The invesimant objective of the Serdes Trust is to seek to benefit from medium to long-term capital appreciation, in
Yen terms, mainly deriving from investmeant in public and privata Japanasa and Asian equities.

The Seres Trust has the following corefsatellite investment themes;
1) Core Theme - Innovative Technalogias and Servicas

The Series Trust aims lo achieve capital growth through seleclive investmanl in equities of companias That
are expected to lead industries, mainly by creating innovative technologies and services, using a nigorous
research process among a wide range of industries (the "Innovative Technologies and Services').
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{Expressad in Japanese Yen)

The industries in scope include, but are not limited to, companies in the following investment areas. Finlech,
Al (Adificial Inlsligance) and blockchain, The investment focus includes any high tech industry that
promotas “Industry 4.0° such as loT (Intemet of Things) and robotics, 5G and “Sociaty 5.0°, whare
innovative technologies and sanvices that cavar a wide range of industries, such as healthcare (medical and
nursing cana), infrastructura (traffic and enargy), food and agricullure, etc. are involved,

2) Satellite Theme — Magatrands

Under the theme of the Innavative Technologies and Services, the Series Trust also aims to achieve capital
growth through selective investmeant in equities and equity related sacuritizs of companias that may banafil
fram glabal lang-tarm markai themes rasulting from secular changes in economic and social factors such as
demographics, lfestyle, regulations andfor the environment (Ihe "Megalrends®),

The Ex-lapan Asian Public Equity Portion is focused on themes positioned at the intersection of
Megatrends. Companies strategically aclive within such themes are expected to experience long=term
growth superior to that of the overall economy.

The Series Trusl's investment portfolio is divided into different portions (togethar the Vhale Asset Portfolio™):

iy Private Equity Portion
A part of the Series Trust's assels is invested in private Japanese and Asian equites (the “Private Equity
Portion™),

(ii) Public Equity Portion
A part of the Senes Trust's assels is invesled in public Jepanese end Asian equities (he “Public Equity
Portion”). The Public Equity Portion is dividad further in;

e pubke Japanese equibies (lhe “"Japanese Public Equity Portion”) being shares (the “Jlapansse
Shares”) listed on stock markets in Japan; and

b.pubkic Asian (but excluding Japan) equities (lha "Ex-fapan Asian Public Equity Portion”) being
securilies (the *Ex-Japan Asian Securilies’) that are;

i, shares listed on slock markets in Asia excluding Jagan; and
ii. equity relaled securities, including bul Aot kmited to.

1. instrumenis issuad by exchange traded funds ["ETFs"), exchange traded notes ("ETNs")
or warrant issuers ("Warranls") which refer to eguity indices of Asian countries excluding
Japan andior shares listed on stock markets in Asia excluding Japan, in each case
without levarage;

2. Ihe following depositary receipts collateralized by shares listed on steck markets in Asia
excluding Japan:

a. Amenca via Amencan deposilary receipts ("ADRs"),
b. European depositary receipts {("EDRs").
c. global depositary receipts ("GDRs™); and

3. listed Instruments issued by real estate investment trusts ("REITs") that invest in real
astata assats in Asian countries excluding Japan.

(i) Cash Portion
A part of the Saries Trust's asests are invested in cash and cash egquivalent investments (the *Cash
Pertizn’). This includes JPY and non-JPY cash daposite, money market funds and money markel
instruments (including, but not limited to, commercial paper, cadificates of deposil and govemment bills). Far
the avoidance of doubt, ovemight cash balances may be held in the Custodian's sweep vehicle,
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{Expressed in Japénese Yemn)

() Hedging Derivativas
All or any part of the Series Trusl's assels altributablz to the JPY Class Unils and denominalad in nen-JPY
currencies may, in the sole discration of the Investment Manager and the Sub-Investment Manager, be
hedged o JPY by antry into the Hadging Darvatives.

The Investiment Manager has becn appointed with discretionary management power to manage tha Whole Asset
Portfolis. The Investment Manager haz appointed the Sub-lnvestment Manager with discretionary management
powar to manage the Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Portion and a correspanding portion of the Cash Portion and the
Hedging Dernivalives.

Tha Investment Manager manages and determines the asset allocalion among the Private Equity Perlion, the
Japanese Public Equily Portion and the Ex-Japan Asian Public Equity Portion.

On Mareh 19, 2023, UBS Group AG ("UBS") agmead to acquira Credit Suisse Group AG ("Credit Suizse”) following
intervention by the Swiss Federal Department of Finance, the Swiss Mational Bank and the Swiss Financial Market
Suparvisary Autharity (FINMA).

As of June 12, 2023, UBS Group AG announced the legal closing of the acquisilion of Credil Suisse Group AG by
way of a statutory merger. As 3 resull of the closing, Credit Suisse Group AG ceased to exist, and Credil Suisss AG
bacama a diract wholly-owned subsidiary of UBS Group AG. Ona of tha key staps of tha integration is the legal
merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG (the “Farent Bank Merger”). The Parent Bank Merger is & statutory merger
by absorplion under Swiss law, whereby UBS AG will be the surviving entity and Credit Suisse AG will cease to exist
upan complation of the margar. At this poinl in time, in principle, all agzets, liabikties and contracts of Cradil Suisga
AG and its branches will aulomatically transfer to UBS AG (and its branches as the case may be) by operation of law
(in other words by “universal succession’). As a resull. UBS AG will automabcally take over all the rights and
responsibilities from Credit Suisse AG. The Parent Bank Marger was completed with effect from May 31, 2024.

The Sernes Trust has no exposure related o investments in financial assets with UBS AG.

Following a Special resolution datad Fabruary 1, 2024, tha Managar changed its name and is now incomaratad under
the name of UBS Management (Cayman) Limited. The Master Trust Deed was revised through a Deed of
Ameandmeanl on March 1, 2024,

On February 28, 2024, the Truslee resolved to change the name of the Trusl from Credd Suisse Universal Trust
(Cayman) Il to UBS Universal Trust (Cayman) I,

Certain comparative figures in the financial statements have been adjusted to align with current year prasentation,

The financial slalemants were authorized for issue by the Trustee on October 31, 2024,

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial slatements are set out below. These
polices have bean consislenlly applied 1o all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards (IFRS"), The preparation of financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounling Standards requires the use of cerlain critical aceounting eslimates
and raguiras tha Trustea and tha Manager to exercise (hair judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust's
accounting policies. Areas where assumplions and estimates are matarial to tha financial statamanls ara disclozad In
Mote 4. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Tha Seres Trust has adopied Investment Enlities (Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standard 10, IFRS Accounting
Standard 12 and IAS 27) (2012) (the Amendmenils). Management concluded that the Series Trust meels the
definttion of an investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial labilities

IFRS Accounting Standard 9 contains three principal classification categordes for financial essets. measured al
amorlized cost, fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehansive incame
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(Exprassad in Japanese Yen)

{FVOCH). The classification of financial assets under IFRS Accounling Standard 9 is generally based on the business
modal in which a finandial assat is managed and ils contraclual cash flow charactanslics.

On initial recognition, the Saries Trust classifies financial assets as messured at amortized cost or FVTPL, A financial
assel is measured al amorized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

i} It is hedd within a businass madal whosa objactive is 1o hold assets to collect contrectual cash flows: and.

i) lis contractual terms give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solaly represent paymeants of
principal and interest (SPPI).

A financial assel is measured at fair value through profit or less if any of the following apply:

i) Itz eontractual terms do not give risa 1o cash flows an specified Jdales thal are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount oulstanding,

it} It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to bath
collact contractual cash flows and gall;

iiip AL initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing so eliminates or matenally
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabifites
ar receqgnizing the gaine and losses on tham an diffarent basas.

In assassing whather the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Sarias Trust considers the contractual terms of tha
instrumant. This includes assassing whather the financial asset contains a confractual larm that could change tha

timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Series Trust considers:

- contingent events that weuld change the amaunt or timing of cash flows:
- leverage features,
- prepayment and exiansion featuras;
-terms that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assels (e.g. non-recourse features); and
- features that modily consideration of the tme value of maney {e.g. periadical reset of interest rates)
Tha Sedee Trust has determinead that it has two business madels:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalants, prepaid fass, recaivablas for
dividends, securiies scld and interesl. and other assets. These fnancial assets are held bo collect
conlraciual cash flow.

- Othar business model: this includes financial assels at fair value through profit or loss. These financial
assels are managed and their parformance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking
place,

In making an assassment of the objeclive of the business maodel in which a financial assel is held, the Series Trust
considers all of the relevan! information about how tha business is managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execulion of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
invastment strategy focusas on eaming conlractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial assats to the duratisn of any relalad liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assats;

- how the perfarmance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported fo the Seres Trust's managemen,
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- the risks that affect the pedomance of the busmess model (and the financial assets held within that business
madel) and how those rsks ars managed,

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected: and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assels in prior penods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about fulure sales activity,

Transfers of financial assets ta third parties in transactions that do not quality for derecognition are not cansidared
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's continuing recognilion of the assets.

Financial liabilities camried al amortized cost include bank ovardrafi payablas for securiias purchased, invastmant
management feas, distrbution fees, fee agent fees, professional fees, custody fees, edminisirater fees, registraton
faas, ransfar agant feas, printing fees and agent member company faes,

Impairment of financial assets

The “expectad credit loss® (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investments
atl FvOCI, but not to investmants in listed and unlisted private equity instruments.

Based on the Series Trust's assessment, the ECL model does nol have a matenal impacl on the Series Trust's
financial assets because:

- Tha majority of the financial assats are measured at FVTPL and the impaiment requiremants do not apply to such
instruments.

- The financial assels at amortized cost are short-lerm (i.e. no longer than 12 monlhs), of high credil quality andior
highly collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs an such assets are expected to be small,

Changes in material accounting policies

The Series Trust adopled Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amandments to 145 1 and IFRS Accounting Standard
Praclice Statement 2} from January 1, 2023, Although the amendments did net resull in any changes ta tha
accounting policies thamselves, they impactad the accounting palicy information disclosed in the financial stalements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than 'significant’ accounting policias. The amandmanis
also provide guidance on the application of malerially to disclosure of accounting peolicies, sssisting entities (o
provide ussful, antity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the
financ:al statemants.,

Mew standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not affactiva for the year anded June 30, 2024:

A number of new slandards and amendmenis to standards are effactive far annual periods beginning affer July 1,
2023 and earker application is permitted. however, the Series Trust has nat early applied thass new or amendad

elandards in preparing these financial statements as they do nol have a matenal effect on the Series Trust's financial
slatemanis.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits wilh oniginal maturily of three months or
less to be cash and cash equivalants. Bank averdra®t is shown in Babilities in the Statement of Financial Positian,
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At Juns 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, Ihe Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash equivalants:

Juna 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Cash ¥ 8549344 ¥ 15,446,543
Tiene deposit 130,605,024 154,285,203
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financlal Position ¥ 139,154,358 I 169,731,748
Bank overdraft {10,032) {38,065)
Cash and cash equivalents In the Statement of Cash Flows ¥ 139,144,316 ] 169,691,681

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

{A] Classification
The Seres Trus! cassifias financial assets and labiliies into the following calagornias:

Financial assels al fair value through profit or loss:
* Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investments in listed and unlisted private equity securities.

Financial essels at fair value through profit ar loss consist of the following:

June 30, 2024 - June 30, 2024 —

Fair Value Coal
Invastmants in unlisted privabe equity securntes B a74,194 800 ¥ 351,729,000
Investmanis in listed sacuritias F 878 230,633 2,274,768, 797

¥ 3353 425233 ¥ 2 EB26497.797

dune 30, 2023 - June 30, 2023 -

_FalrValue =~ Ceost

Investments in unlisted privale equity securities ¥ 353,051,200 ¥ 351,729,000
Investiments in lsted securitias 3,246 848,505 20944 008,218

¥ 3599898705 ¥  3,795737,218

Financial assets at amorized cosi:
« Cash and cash equivalents prepaid feas, receivahlas for dividends and securities sold,

Financial Rabilitias at amortized cost:

= Othar liabilities: bank overdraft, payablas for securifias purchasad units repurchased, Investmeant management
foes, distribution fees, fee agenl fees, prolessicnal fees, custody fees, adminislrater fees, regisiration fees, fransfar
agant faes, printing fzes and agent membeér company fees.

(B} Recognitian/Darecagnition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assats and liabiities on the dale i becomes a pary to the contraciual
provisions of the instrumenl. Regular purchases and sales of invesimanis are recognized on Ihe (rade date - tha date
on which the Series Trust commils to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from tha investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred subslantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized whan its contraciual obligations are discharged,
canceled or expirad.

{C) Measuramant

Financial essets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with transaction
costs recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assels
and liabilities at fair valua through prafit or loss ame measured al falr value, Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the ‘financial assels and Labilties at fair value through profit or loes’ category are presented in the
Stalemant of Comprehensive Income in the peried in which they anse. Realized gains or losses on sale of
invesimenis are calculated using first-in-first-out method,

10
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Financial assets and liabilities other than those at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using
the effective nterest rate methed, less impaiment lossas. if any. This |s considared to approximate fair value due to
the short-term or immadiate natura of thase instruments,

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markals (such as publicly traded dervatives and trading
sacuritiaz) i& based on guotad markat prices at the close of treding on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Rabilty in an orderly transaction batween market participants
at Ihe measuremaent data. The fair value of a lability rafiscts its non-parformanca risk. Invastments ar othar assats for
which market quotations are not readily availlable are valued al their fair value as determined in good failh in
accordance with procedures adopled by the Truslee with advice frem the Manager. The resulling net change in
unrealized gains or losses are raflected in the Statement of Comprahansive Incomea,

(E) Investments in listed securities

The fair value is based on their quoted market prices on a recognized exchange or sourced from a repulabla
brokerfcountarparty, in the case of non-exchange traded instruments, at tha Statement of Financial Positian dala
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

{F) Investmants in unlistad private aguity securitias

The portiolio companies in which investments are mada may nevar be publicly fraded or lislad on a securities
exchange, Investments in unlisted companies are riskier than investments in listed companies because, among other
things, thay are nol subjact to the sama disclosure and reporting requirements that are generally applicable ta public
companias. Additionally, investments in unlisled companies may be difficult to valua and difficult ar impassinle to
realize.

Investments in unlisted private equily securities may consist of common stock snd preferred stock of privately cwned
companies, The transaction price, excluding transaction costs, is typically the Seres Trust's best estimate of fair
valug al acquisition. At each subzequant measuramant date, tha Sarigs Trust reviews lhe valuation of each
investment and records adjustments as necessary to reflect the expacted axit value of the invesiment undar current
market conditions, Ongaing reviaws by the Series Trust’s management are based on an assessment of the type of
investment, the stage in the lifecycle of the company, and trands in the parformance and credit profila of each
company as of The measurement date. The Series Trust uses an independent expert to value unlisted privata aquity
sacunities using an income approach,

In certain inslances, the Saeries Trust may uss Digcounted Cash Flow and Recant Transaction techniques. The
decision to use a valuation epproach will depend on the investment lype and the information availabla. When
applying valuation tachniques usad to determine fair value, the Series Trust assumes a reasonable pericd of time for
estimating cash flows and considers the financial condition and cperating resulte of the company, the nature of the
investment, restrictions on marketability, markel cenditons, foreign cumency exposures, and other factors, Whan
detenmining the fair value of investments, the Series Trust exercises significant judgment and uses the best
information available as of the measurement date, Due to the inherent uncerainty of valuations, the fair values
reflected in the financial stalements as of the measurement date may differ from (1) values thal would have baen
usad had a readily available market existad for those investments and (2) the values that may ultimately be realized.

Inputs used under the discountzd cash flow valuation technique may includa annual projected cash flows for each
investment through their expected remaining economic bfe discounted to probability weighted to reflect the risks
associated with achisving expected performance levels across various business scenarios, perpelual growth rate.
discount for lack of marketability (DLOM), and a pear group valuation multiple applied to correspanding performance
melrics, that is, estimated value as ratio of eamings before interest, tax, dapreciation, and amorlization (ERITOMA).
The salected valuation multiple was estimated through a comparalive analysis of the perfarmance and characteristics
of each invesiment within a ranga of comparabla companies. Investments in unlisted private equily securities are
generally categonzed i Level 3 of tha fair valua hierarchy.

{G) Forward Contracts

Forward contracls are commitments eilher to purchase or sell a designated financial instrumant, currency, commadity
or an index at a specified fulure date for a specified price and may be settled in cash or ancther financial assal.
Forward contracts are valued using abservabla inputs, such as currency exchange rates or commodity prices, applied
lo notional amounts stated in the applicable contracts, Gains and lsesas are reported in net realized gain or loss on
financial assets through profit or bess in the Stalemnent of Comprehensive Incoma. Az of Juna 30, 2024 and June 30,
2023, there were no open forward foreign currency held by the Series Trust.
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2.3 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offsel and the net amount reparted in tha Statement of Financial Position only
when there is a legally enforceable rnght lo offsel the recognized amaounts and there is an intention 1o setile on a nat
basis, or realize the assel and settle the liability simultaneausly, As at 30 June, 2024 and 30 Juns, 2023, all financial
assets and liabilities are shown at Ihelr gross amounts as nona met tha criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and
tharafora have not baan oifsel in the Staterment of Financial Position.

2.4 Receivables for Securities Sold and Payables for Securities Purchased

Raceivables for sacuribes sold and payablas fer sacuritiss purchasad reprasant trading transactions that have been
contracted for but nol yel setlled on the Stalement of Financial Position dale, respectively, These amounts are
recognized initially and subsaquently measured at fair value, lass provision for impairmant for amounts of recaivablas
for sacuritias gold. A provision for impainment is established when there is objective evidence that the Series Trust will
nol be able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the braker will enter bankrupicy or financial reorganization, and default in payments are considensd
indicators that the amount of receivables for sacurities scld is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expansas are racognizad on an accrual basis in the Statamant of Comprahansiva Incoma.

2.6 Foreign Currency Translation

{A} Functional and Prasentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported lo the inveslors in Yen. The Trustee considers the
Yen as the currancy that most faithfully reprasents the economic effects of the underying transactions, evants and
conditions of the Sanes Trust. The financial statements are presented in Yen, which is the Series Trust's functional
and presentabion currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are franslaled in Yen amounts at the dale of
valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue and repurchase of units and income and
expanze ftems denominated in foreign currencies are transfated into Yen amounts on the respective dates of such
transachons.

Reported net realized ar unrealized forelgn exchange gains or losses resulling from changes in foreign exchange
rales on financial assats and labilities al fair valua through profit or loss are included in et realized gain or loss on
financial assets and liabiliies al fair value through profil or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or
depraciation on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through prafit or loss in the Statemant of Comprehensiva
Income.

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depraciation from foreign currency transactions and transiation ane disclosad
separataly in the Stalamant of Comprahansive Income.

Z.7 Distributions
The Series Trust may generale a certain amount of income each year, The cument policy of the Series Trust is lo not

pay disiributions in respact of tha JPY Class Units provided that, the Manager may, in its discretion, declare and pay
distributions from lima to ima.

If the Manager does declare any distributions in respect ¢f the JPY Class Units, it is anlicipated that any such
distributions will ba declared on an annual basis en aach Distribution Daszlaration Day,

The distribution is expected to be computed from the fellowing separate elements;

{1} an amount equal to the dividends or distrbutions paid by the investmants constituling the Whola Assat
Portiolio (net of all epplicable taxes),

(iiy interest accrued on the dividand or distribution amounts recaived frem (i) abave, untl paid out on the
corresponding Distribution Date (paragraghs (1) and (i) hereafter referred 1o as the "Generated Incama”);
and

{in} reslized and unrealized capital gains fram the Whale Assat Portfolio {the "Generated Capital Gains®)
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In principle, the amount of distribution to be paid in respect of each Distribution Date shall be detarmined by the
Manager in ils sole discretion taking into account (1) Generated Income, (2) Generated Capital Gains, and (3}
miscellanasus costs, amang other factors, par Unil, in each case altributable lo the comesponding Distribution Period,
Tha Manager may, where it deems approprizle, elect that a distribution be paid in whele or in part out of investment
principal attributable to the JPY Class Units, that is in excess of any Generatad Incoma recaivad (and which may also
be in excess of any Generated Capital Gains) over a Distribulion Period, where it deems such amounts 1o be
insufficient to fund thet distnbution.

Circumetances where the Manager may elact to pay part or all of a distribution cut of the investment principal include,
bul ara naol limited to, where it delerminas in its sole discretion that application of the Series Trust's invesiment
objectives and policies have generated a negative pedarmance over the previous ysar or have undarparformad such
that tha Managar deams it appropriata to make such election.

Thara were no distributions declared and paid during the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023

2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has wnits which are repurchased at the holder's oplion. The Senes Trust classifies its puttable
instruments as liabflities in accordance with IAS 32 (Amendment) Financial istroments: Presenfalion
Tha amandmant requires puttable financial instrumants that meet the definition of & financial liability to be dassified
85 equity where cerain strict crilteria are mel, Those criteria include.

+ The puttable instruments must entitle the holder 1o a pro-rata share of net assets;

«  The pultable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be dentical;

#  There musl be no confractual abligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation
on tha issuer to repurchase: and

=  The tolal expacted cash flows from the puttabla instrumant over its lifa must be based substantially on the
profit or loss of the issuer.

As these conditions ware mal, the Series Trust's units have been classified as equity at June 30, 2024,

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any bme for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Serigs Trust's tolal
equity.

Units are carned at the repurchased amount that iz payabla at the Statemeant of Financial Position date if the holder
exercizes the nght lo put the units 2ack inle the Senes Trust,

Units are issued and repurchased at prices based on the Saries Trust's total equity par unit at tha time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trusl's equity per unit is calculaled by dividing the total equity by the latal number ef
outstanding units. Refer to Note 3 for further discussion.

2.9 indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter into cerain contracts that centain a variety of
indemnifications. The Seriag Trust's maximum expesure undaer these arrangements is unknown. However, the Seres
Trust has not had pricr claims of losses pursuant 1o these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased
Recaivabla for units izsued iz carmied at Ihe issuance amaunt that i recsivabla at the Statement of Financial Poasition

date. Payable for repurchase of units s cammed al the repurchase amount that is payable al the Statement of
Financial Posifion data.

2.11 Net income/(loss) from linancial instruments at FYTPL

Met incame fram financial instruments at FYTPL includes realized and unrealized gainsflosses on financial assels
and kabililes and dividend income. Met raalized gain or loss from fnancial instruments at FVTPL is calculated using
the first in, first out method, Met realized gain or loss on financial assats and [abllities at FYTPL represanis the
difference between the cost of the financial instruments and is settlement price of the sale trade. Mat changa in
unrealized (depreciation)/appreciation on financial assels and Eabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between
tha carrying amount of a financial instrumant at the beginning of tha periad, or the transaction price I # was

purchased in the current reporiing pericd and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting pariad. Refer to Nota 7
for furthar datails.
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Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is eslablished. Accretion of discount and
amartization of premium over the kfe of the respective sacurty are calculated using the effective yield method,
Dividand income and axpensa (whare ralevant) presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise
dividend on financial agsets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL,

2.12 Taxation

The Trust has received an underaking from the Cayman lslands Government exempting it from all beeal income,
prafits and capital gains taxes until Dacamber 2. 2063, Mo sush taxes are lavied in the Cayman |slands at the presant
tima.

The Saras Trest could incur withhaolding taxes imposad by cartain counlrias on invastmant incoma and capital gains.
Such income or gein would be recorded gross of withholding texes m the Statement of Comprahensive Income,
Withhelding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statemeanl of Comprehensive Income.

For the years anded Juna 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 taxes ware compnsed of the fallowing balance:

2024 2023
Withholding Taxes on Dividends ¥ 7.365 148 ¥ 8,016,954

The Senes Trust may choosa to invesl in securites domicilad in countries othar than tha Cayman lslands. Many of
these fordign countnes have tex laws which indicele thet cepital gains taxes may be eppliceble to non-residents
including the Series Trust. These capital gains taxes are required 1o be determined on a salf-assessment basis and,
therefara, such laxes may not be deducted by the Series Trust's broker en a “withhelding™ basis.

In accordance with IAS 12 — Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recognize a lax liability when it is probable
that the tax laws of faraign countries requira a tax Fability to be assessed on the Sarias Trust's capital gains sourced
from such foreign country, essuming lhe relevant taxing aulhorities have full knowladge of all the factz and
circumslances. The tax labilty is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevanl taxation
authorities using the tax laws and rales that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
penod. Thera is sometimas uncertainty about the way anacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Saries
Trusts. This creates uncerlainty about whether or not a tax liability will ultmately be paid by the Series Trust
Tharafare, when measuring any uncerain tax labilites management considers all of the relevant facts and
circumslances available at the time which could influanca tha likalihecd of payment, including any farmal ar infarmal
practices of the relevant tax authorities.

As al June 30, 2024 and Juna 30, 2023 tha Managar has determinad that tha Sarias Trust did not have a liability 1o
record for any unrecognized tax benefit in the accompanying financial stalements, While this represents the
Manager's best estimate there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital
gains eamad by the Saries Trust. This could happan without giving prior warning, possibly on a2 retrospective basis,
and could result in a loss to the Series Trust

2.13 Transaction Feas

Transaction fees are cosls incurred to acquire or dispose of financial assets or liabilities at fair value *hrough profit or
loss. Transaclion costs, when incurred, are immedialely recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
an expanse, Fof the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, the Senes Trust paid ¥1,756472 and
¥2 652,225, respactively in transaction feas

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Met Asset Value of each unit of the Seres Trust is calculated by dividing the Nat Asset Valua af the Series Trust
by tha total number of units of the Series Trusl then oulslanding, The Adminisirator computes the Net Asset Value of
ihe Saries Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, 1s calculated and paid in Japanese Yen.

The minimum initial subscription must ba no lass than 100 units. All unithalders must complete a subscriplion
application. The initial purchase price of units is JPY 10,000 per unit.

All payments far the units must be made in Japanese Yen. The Trusles may reject any subscription for any reason
and without providing reasons.
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Afler the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subseguent subscription dale at the
relevant subscription price. All payments for the unite shall be made in Japanesa Yen. The Trustea may reject any
subscription for any reason and without providing reasons.

The Trustea or its duly dasignated agent must raceiva tha subscriplion price for the units on or prior to 5:00 p.m.
{Tokyo lime) by no later than the second business day after the relevant subscription date. Subscriplion applications
are irrevocable.

The tolal net assets, units oculstanding and nat assets value per unit as of June 20, 2024 were as follows.

Mot Asset Value par
Classes of unils Total net assets Unlts autstanding unit
JEY Class Units ¥ 3426744 851 2TTHOT 12,334 9828

The total net assels, wnits oulstanding and net assels value per unit as of June 30, 2023 were as follows;

Hat Asset Value par
Classes ol units Total net assels Unlts outstanding unlt

Jry Class Units ¥ AT39.965.070 © aT052 ¥ 10,832.2618

As of Juna 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, all issued units were hald by one unitholder, who holds 100% of interest in
the net assais,

A unitholder may transfer its haldings in units only with the prar writben consent of the Trustes which consent shall
not be unreasanably withhetd or delayed Mo transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustes or
unithalder until enlerad inlo the Senas Trusl's registar of unitholdars,

Each unitholdar may submit {0 the Trustee or its duly designated agenl a repurchase notice requesting to have all or
g portion of its units repurchased at the Repurchase Prica on the ralevant repurchase date, Repurchass ordars may
be submitted in units. If such notice is nol in respect of the entire halding units of such unitholder recorded in the
register of unitholders then the Truses in ts sole discretion may apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unil.
Repurchase noticas are imavocabla.

Al the time of each repurchasa of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchasad.

Amounts payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class are paid in cash bul may be
mada in kind' {or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustes o the extent that the Trustee, in
consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a datermination is
made by the Trustee. disibutions to all repurchasing unilholders on Ihe same day are made on the same basis.

Payment may alsc ba made in such othar currancy thal may ba frealy purchased with such applicable currency as
a unitholder may request, orovided thet any foreign exchenge cosl shall be deductad from the amaunt payabla to
such unitholder. Mo such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prier to actual distribution,

During the year ended June 20, 2024, the proceeds from units issued and repurchazed wara as follows:

Proceads Irom unlts  Proceeds from units
Classes of units izsued repurchased
JPY Class Unlts ¥ = ¥ (7965, 205 0400

Dwring the year ended June 30, 2023, the proceeds from units issued and repurchasad ware as follows

Proceads from unlts  Procoeeds from units

Classes of units Issuad rapurchased
JPY Class Units L] - F] {334 481 570N
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During the years ended Juna 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, the number of units issued, repurchased and culstanding
wara a3 follows:

Classes of units Juime :n 2023 Uikl hsued Uiits repurchased Jung Ju, 2024
JPY Class Units 34T 052 (B%,245) 277.807
At Al
Classes of units Juna 30, 2022 Units issued Units repurchased June 30, 2023
JPY Class Units 385,572 - (38,520} 347,052

Tha issua and repurchase of unils and payments in respact of such transactions will be suspended in any
circumstances where the calculation of the Nel Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder
of such a suspension as scon as practicable after it is imposed or lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase
noticas cannot ba withdrawn during such suspension and will be procassed for the next subscription data or
repurchase dale, as the case may be.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and assumplions concerning the Tuture that affect the reported amounts of assels and
liabilities. Estimates ara continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expactations of futura avents that ara believed to ba reasonable under tha circumstancas. The resulting accounting
esbmeles will, by definition, seldom equal the related eclual resulls. The Seriezs Trust may, from lime to time, hold
financial instruments that are not guoted in aclive markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives, Fair values of such
instruments are detarmined by using valuation techniques. Where valuafion technigues (for exampla, models) are
used to determine fair valuas, they ara validated and panodically reviewad by the Managar.

. FINAMCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

£.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Seres Trust's aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (indluding currency risk, inlerest rate
risk and price nsk), credit nsk and Figuiddy risk. Tha managemeant of these risks is camied oul by the Manager undar
policies approved by the Trusles.

The Series Trust uses different methads to measure and manage tha various typas of risks to which it = axpoasad,
these methods are explained balow,

(A) Market Risk i

{i} Currency Risk

Listed and unlisted private equity securities in which the Series Trust invests may be denominaled or quoted in
currencies other than tha functional currency af the Seras Trust. For this reason, changes in foreign currency
exchange rates can affect the value of lhe Senes Trust's portiolio.

Generally, when tha Series Trust's functional currancy rizes in value against another cumency, a securily
denominaled in that currency loses value bacause the currency is worth less giving effect to the conversion inta the
Series Trust's funcional currency. Conversely, when the Series Trust's functional currency decreases in value
against another currency, a sacurity danominated in that currency gains value,

This risk, generally known as “"currency risk”, means that a strong functional currency of the Series Trust may reduca
retums to investors while a weak functional currency of the Series Trust may increase those returns. Currency rates
may fluctuate significantly aver short periods of time for a number of reasons, induding changes in interest rates,
intervention {or the failure to intervena) by Ihe governments, central banks or supranational entities such as the
International Monetary Fund, or by the imposition of currency controls or other polifical developments. As a resull, the
Series Trust's investmenis in foreign-currency denominated securities may reduce its returns. Gertain posilions taken
by the Series Trust are designed lo profit from faracasling currency price mavements. Predicting future pricas is
inherently uncertain and the losses incwrred, if the market moves against a position, will not ba hedged, The
spaculative aspact of attempling to predict absolute price mevements is genarally perceived to exceed thal involved
in altempting lo predict relative price fluctuations,
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Through the use of varicus types of foreign currency transactions, the Senes Trusl may be exposed to the
performance of & particular currency or currencies o contribute to the performance of the Series Trust. There can be
no assurance that the Manager will employ a succassful currency program and the Series Trust could incur losses
attributable to its cumrency activiies when the value of tha functional currency weakens agains! the other currencies of
the Sanes Trusl In addiion, the Sanes Trusl will incur ransaction costs in connaction with the currency stralegy

designated by the Manager,

The table below summarizes the Seres Trust's exposure to currency risks at June 30, 2024;

Finamcial Assets at % of Het
At Cash and Cash Fair Value through  Other Assets and Assel
June 30, 2024 Eguivalents Profit or Loss Liabilitles (Mot} Het Value
Chinazae ¥Yuan
Raaminbi (offshors
markat) CNH ¥ - ¥ 141.3008.431 ¥ (425} ¥ 141,308 006 4.1%
Chinese Yuan
Reaminki (onshore
mearkit) CNY 535,655 5.857.156 . 6232 821 0.2%
Hong Kong Dollar HED T42.624 444,555 319 2422212 444,120,155 13.1%
Indonesian Rupiah 10R . 55585044 - 55.585.044 1.6%
South Koregn Won  KRW - 309,605,832 575,845 310,181 541 1%
Singapore Dolar 5GD 16.358 53,143,182 - 53.160.150 1.6%
New Tanean Dollar - TWOD - 321.254.239 1,154 480 322 408,713 9.4%
Umibed States Dollar  USD 5404857 427,545,759 9,195,750 442 545 455 12.9%
Viethamese Dong WD 7087 82 20,491,951 - 25470634 _0.8%
14,687 88T 1.780,147 683 13,347,866 1,808 183,435 52.8%
Japanesa Yen JPY 124 456,443 1,673 277 550 (79,172,584) 1618561415 472

¥ 139,144,336 ¥

3353425233 ¥

%
(65,924,718) ¥ 3428744851 ____100.0%

The table below summarizes the Series Trust's exposure to currency risks at June 30, 2023

Financial Assels al % of Net
At Cesh and Cash Fair Value through ~ Other Assels and Asset
June 30, 2023 Equivabents Profit or Loss Liabilitics (Mat) HNet Value
Chinase Yuan
Reambnbi (oMshors
markat) CNH ¥ - 225,508,577 ¥ - ¥ 225508577 B.0%
Chinesa Yuan
Renminbi {onshore
market} CNY - 17,341,257 - 17,341 257 4%
Hong Kong Dollar ~ HKD 187 487 642,367 565 2,782,299 645,337 351 17.2%
Indomgsian Rupiah [ - 101,226,025 - 101,226,025 2.7
South Korean Won  KRWW - 289,708,739 4597 966 270,206,705 T.2%
Singapore Dollar 860 10,313 64,611,800 - B4,622 213 1.6%
MNew Taiwan Daollar  TWD . 332,624,650 4,449,610 337,074,260 4.0%
United States Dollar USD 2,754 €07 284,392 093 (3.073,828) 284 073,075 T.6%
Vietnamese Dong  WND 15.420,061 36,095 446 - 51,515,507 1.4%
18,372 458 1,973 876 255 4 656 2T 1,996,904 970 53.1%
Japanese Yan JPY 151,321,213 1,626,123 450 (14,984 583)  1,762,460,100 46.8%

& 160,693,681 ¥ !-,_Eﬁ_ﬂ.m!?ﬂ! L] (10.328,316) ¥ 3,759,365 ,070 100.0%
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The following table summarizes the sensitivity of tha Saries Trust's assets and liabilties to changes in foreign
exchange movements &l June 30, 2024 and June 30, Z023. The analysis is based on the assumptions that the
relevant fareign exchange rate increased/{decreased) against the Japanase Yen by the percentages disclosed in the
table, with all othar vanables held comstant. This represenis management's bast estimate of a reasonably possible
shift in the foreign exchange rates, having regard to historical volatility of those rales,

Ressonably possible

#hilt in currency rato at bmpact o Sories Trust

Currancy Juns 30, 2024 Hat Assnts

CHH - 10.53% L 14,679,733
CHY e 10.T6% - 6A7 858
HKD +- 11.65% - 51,802 650
[ ] b 2.0 - 1,150,628
KRw +Ha B - 17,649,330
BGD + 10.51% i 546612
TWI += 6.55% - 21,245,735
a0 + 11.20% - 49 585204
WND e 3,34% - 51,200

Reasonably possible
ahilt in curmency rals at Impact to Berles Toest

Currency duma 30, 2023 Mot Assets

CNH »l- 1.66% L. 3,811,095
CMY +f 1.40% - 242778
HED e 8.84% i £4 141 078
iR +e 58I% L 5,801,877
HAW - 5.00% - 13,591,367
SED - 10.15% = 6,585,004
™D +- 2.14% - 7.213.389
Ush L B.7I% L 19,118 118
WD - 5.38% B 2776 588

It s expected that a substantial portion of the assets of the Series Trust may be danaminated in non=JPY currencies
Accordingly, the Seres Trust may have exposure to Mlucluations in currency exchange rates through investment in
investment currencias other than JPY. This may include, but is not limited to, USD and RMB,

In principla, the Investment Manager and Sub-Investment Manager will nol enter into any currency hadging
transachions in respect of such foreign exchange exposure, However, the Investment Manager and Sub-Investment
Manager, as applicable, may, at ils sole discretion, enter into currancy hadging fransactions which are designed 1o
raduca, but not eliminate, exchange-rate risk and protect all or any peri of the asssts atirbulable to the JPY Class
Units from a depraciation in ihe invastmant currencies against JPY,

Tao tha extent that any such hedging is camied oul, the Investment Manager and Sub-lnvestment Manager, as
appiicable, may usa spat conlracts, forward foreign exchange contracts, non-deliverable forwards (including cross
forward foreign exchange contracts, swaps, options and futures In order to attempt to hedge against such currency
fluctuations. There can be no assurance that such hedging lransactions will be effactive if carried out. The gains or
losses attributable to any such hedging shall be applied w the JPY Class Units,

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Tha majority of the Seties Trust's financial assels and liabilities are non-interast bearing. Interest bearing assets held
by the Serizs Trust are comprised of cash and cash equivalents. including bank overdraft whose matunity is less than
three months. As a resull, the Senes Trust is not subjact to any significant risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing
lavels of market interest rales.

At June 30, 2024 end June 30, 2023, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis points with all other
variables ramaining constant, the increase or decrease in lotal comprahensive income of the Series Trust (being
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increase in net assets attibutable 1o the holder of redeemable units from cperations for the period) would amount to
approximalely ¥553,025 and ¥771, 426, respactively assuming that the cash position will ba hald for one year.

{111} Market Price Risk

The market price of securities owned by the Series Trust may go up or down, somatimes rapidly or unprediclably.
Securities may decline in value due 1o factors affecting securities markets generally or particular industries
represented in the sacuritiss markets. The value of 8 secunly may decline due o general market conditions which are
not specifically relaled to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse econamic conditions, supply and
demand for particular securities or instruments, changes in tha genaral cutlook for cerporate earnings, changes in
intarest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment They may also decline due fo factors which affect
a parficular industry or industries. such as labor shortages or increased production costs and competitive canditions
within an industry. During 2 general downtumn in the sscurities markets, multiple assat claszas may decling in value
simultanzously. Listed and unfisted private equity sacurities ganarally have graaler price volability than foced income
sacuritiss,

The fallowing tabla summarizes the concantration in market price risk as at June 30, 2024:

Industry Name Fair Value % of Hot Assets
Invastmant in listed and unlisted private equity securlties

Aute Manufactunens ¥ 65,450,904 1.9%
Auto Parts & Equipmant 83,129 855 2.E%
Banks 324732253 3B
Bullding Materials 27,315,000 0.8%
Chemicals 103,218,295 3%
Commercial Services 28,502 BB 0.8%
Compulars 244 25T 5T T1%
CosmeticaPersonal Care 28311 E48 0.8%
Diversified Financial Services A7 552 832 1.1%
Electrical Companents & Equipment 21135451 0E%
Electronics 248,334 117 T.2%
Energy-ftemale Sources 27,882 631 0.8%
Enviranmental Contral 32070142 0.8%
Food 27402 684 0.6%
Gas 27,444,825 0.6%
Hand/Machine Taals 27,456,000 0.8%
Haalthcare-Products Al S60, 200 1.2%
Horme Furnichings 82,032 617 2.7%
InLrance 43,587 880 $.3%
Infarmet 288 915 801 B.4%
Machinary-Construction & Mining 81,022 500 2.4%
Machinery-Diversifiad 478,184,361 14.0%:
Pharmacauticals 8,976,000 0.3%
Real Eslate 4,039,865 0.3%
Ratail 24,106,130 0.7%
Semiconductors BT2.425878 19.8%
Soltware 42 261,000 1.2%
Telecommunications 45,160,500 1.3%
Exchangs Traded Fund 167,171,690 4.9%
Total investment in listed and unlisted private equity securities ¥ 3,353,425233 aT.9%
Financlal assats at fair value through profit or losa ] 3,353,425,233 97.9%
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Country Name Fair Valua % of Not Assats
Invastrmant In listed and unlisted private equity securities

China ¥ 584,814 453 16.5%
Hong Kong 93,133,722 2.7%
India 149,714,803 A A%
indanesia 55,685,944 1.6%
ireland 45232102 1.3%
Japan 1,572,277 .550 45.8%
Singapone 53.143,182 1.6%
South Korea 3006056082 9.0%
Tanwan 321,254 2339 9.4%
United States 167,171,680 4.8%
Wistnam 20.491,651 0.6%
Total investment in listed and unlisted private oquity securitics ¥ 1,353,426.233 §7.9%
Financlal assets at fair value through profit er loss ¥ 3,353,425.233 97.9%

Tha following table summarnzes the concentration in market price risk as at Juna 30, 2023:

Industry Namo Fair Valua % of Not Assats
Investment in isted and unlisted private equity securities

Ao Man ulactonrs ¥ 48 414 411 1.3%
Ao Pars & Equipment 67,755,000 1.8%
Banks 445 857 225 11.9%
Beverages 8,655,700 0.3%
Biatechnalogy 27 B66,A00 0.7%
Busilding Malarals G4, 057 062 1.7%
Chemicals 132,263,656 3.5%
Commeqcial Sevices 46,680,455 1.2%
Comguters 2270368 624 G.0%
Diversified Financial Services 71,669,326 1.9%
Eleclronics 267,376,681 T.1%
Energy-Allemate Sources 97,212,591 2.5%
Food 45,957,718 1.3%
Foresl Products & Paper 10,422,554 0.3%
Hard/Maching Tools 15,870,000 0.5%
Healhcare-Products TT. 463,400 2.1%
Home Fuemnishings 165,840,256 4.4%
Insurance 23050424 0.6%
Infemed 204,440 481 TA%
Machineny-Construction & Mining 57,824,000 1.6%
Machinery-Diversified 385,585,941 10.3%
Phamacauticals 6,975,000 0.2%
Real Estata 42785 442 1.1%
Ratail 33,477,197 1.0%
Samiconductors 495,313,674 13.2%
Softwara 101 436,147 2.7%
Telecommunications 85,067,278 2.3%
\Water 41,141 843 1.1%
Exchange Traded Fund 188 170,130 5.3%
Tatal investment in Ested and unlisted private equity sccuritios ¥ 3,599,933,705 95.8%
Financial assels at fair value through profit or lass ¥ 3,599,993,705 95.8%
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Country Name Falr Value % of Net Assets
Investment in Bated and unlisted private equity socurities

China Y TBG 524,752 20.4%
Hong Kong 172 810,526 4.6%
Indha 31,704,087 0.8%
Indanesia 101,226,025 2.1%
Japan 1626123450 43.3%
Singaporc 64,611,800 1.7%
South Korea 268,708,739 T.2%
Taiwan 332,624,650 B.8%
United States 185,170,120 3.3%
Vietnam 35085446 1.0%
Total investment in listed and unlisted private equity securliles ¥ 1,688,888,705 85.8%
Financial assets at lair value through profit or loss L] 3,895,999, 708 85.8%

As the Series Trust's investments are carmied at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Stalement of
Comprahansive Income, all chamges in market conditions will directiy affect the total net assets and fofal
comprehensive income.

An incraase in markel prices of the investment in flistad and unlisted private equity securities of 1% at June 30, 2024
and Juna 30, 2023, would have increasad tha total equity by ¥33 534 252 and ¥35 555,557, raspaclively. A decraasa
of 1% would, all else being equal, have an equal bul opposite effect.

{B) Cradit Risk

The Series Trust takes on exposure to credil nsk, which ia the risk that a counterparty will b8 unable o pay amounts
in full whan thay fall dus.

Changes in an issuer's credit rating or the markel's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect tha value of
the Seres Trust's investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condilion of lha
issuar and tha terms of the obligation.

All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of defaull is
considered minimal, as delivary of sacurities sold s only made once the broker has recaived payment, Payment is
made on a purchase once the secunties have been received by the broker, Tha trade will fall if either party fails to
meet their cbligation,

The Invastment Manager monitors the Seres Trust's credit position on an on-going basis,

The maximum exposure lo cradit risk of all financial assets at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 is the camying
amounts as shown on fhe Statement of Finanzial Position. Nona of thase assats ars impaired or past dua.

The clearing and depository aperations for the Senes Trust's sccurity ransactions are mainly concenltraled with the
Custodian. At June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 all cash and cash equivalents. balances due from broker and
investments are placed in custody with the Cuslodian, with a Fitch cradit rating of A+,

(C) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investmeants are difficult to purchase or sall, The Seres Trust's investments in
ilfiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust becausa it may be unabla to sell the Bquid securities at
an advantageous time or price. To the extent Ihal the Seres Trust's prncipal investment strategies involve non-
davelopad country sacurities, derivalives and secunties with subslantial market andior credit risk, the Series Trust will
tend to have the greatest exposure Lo liquidity risk. Tha Saries Trusts investments in unlisted private equity securities
ara difficull to purchase or sell. The Private Equity Portion will invest in illiquid sacurilies, which may reducs tha retum
and ariginal invastmant principal of the Sedes Trust because it may be unable to sell such iliquid securities at an
advanlageous time or price.
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The tables below analyze the Series Trust's financial Babilifes into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the Siatement of Financial Position date to Iha contraciual malurity dale. The amounts in the tables are the
contractual undiscounlad cash flows.

At June 30, 2024 _Lessthan Tmenth  1-3months Total
Bank cwerdraft ¥ 10032 ¥ - ¥ 10,032
Payables for.
Unéls repurchased 57,063,200 - 57.083.000
Professicnal fees 6.202.541 - 8.202.941
Investment management fees 6.081 488 - B.067 488
Dislribulion fees 5.135.545 - 5,155,548
Custody fees 2.280.939 - 2,288,990
Fee agem fees 1.731.840 - 1,731,840
Registration fees 1.254.172 - 1254172
Admanistratlorn fess 558,301 - 956,301
Printing fees 553,674 - 553,674
Agent membar company feas 182,302 - 182,302
Transfer agent fees 127,341 - 127,341
Securities purchased 1,023 - 1,023
Cithar llabilitias 2 361,000 - 2 361 000

Contractual cash out llows {exchuding
net assels attributable to the holder of

redeemable unils) ¥ 84001515 ¥ - ¥ 84,001,539
Al June 30, 2023 Less than 1 month 1 =3 months Total
Bank overdiaft ¥ 38,065 ¥ - t 38,065
Payables for:
Securities purchased 7429422 - 7420422
Invesiment management lees 6,317 270 - 6,317,270
Distribution lees 5414768 - 5,414,786
Cuslody lees 2,207,126 - 2,207,126
Units repurchased 2,148,000 - 2,145,000
Prolessional fees 2018853 - 2.015,853
Fee ogen: fees 1,804,925 - 1,804,925
Administiator fees 701,150 - 701,150
Registrataon hees B42 458 - 542,458
Agent member company foes 195,951 - 195,951
Transfor agent foos 165,352 - 165,352
Printing reos 75,201 - 75,201
Othar liabilitias 1,069 557 = 1,069,557

Contractual eash oul Mows |exclud g
not assets attributablo ta the holder of
rixdimable units) ¥ 30,228 118 ¥ - ¥ 30,228,118

Unils are repurchased on demand at the holder's option. However, the Trustee does not envision that this contractual
maturity disclosed will be representative of tha actual cash outflows, as holdars of thasa insirumants fypically retain
them for the medium to long term.

The Manager monitors the Sanas Trusl's liquidity pasilion on an ongeing basis,
Liguidity risk is managad by investing no more than 15% of the Net Asset Velue in illiquid assets.

At June 30, 2024 and Juma 30, 2023 there ware no Series Trust darivalive financial instruments with gross
sattlemant

{D) Risk Management

The Series Trust's Investment Manager's team i3 suppered by carain nsk managemant systems and professionals,
which provide reqular reparting on all partfolio positions and guanlitative risk measuras. Prospective invastors should
be aware that no risk managemant system is fail-safe, and no assurance can be given that risk frameworks employed
by the Manager (e.g.. stop-win, slop-loss, shampe ratios, loss limits, valua-at-risk or any other methodology now
known or later developed) will achieve their objectives and prevent or otherwige limil substantial losses,
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Mo assurance can be given that the risk management systems end lechniques or pricing models will accurately
predict future trading palterns or the manner in which invesiments are priced in financial markets in the futura.

{E) Capltal Risk Managament

Tha capital of the Series Trust is represanted by the nel assets altibutable to the holder of redeemable units. Tha
amount of net assets atiributable to the holder of redeemable units can change significantly an a daily basis as tha
Series Trust iz subjact to daily subscriptions and repurchazas al Ihe discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trusl's
objective when managing capital is to safeguand the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concarn in arder ta
provide retumns for the unitholder and benefits for other stakeholdars and o maintain a strang capital basa 1o support
the developmant of the investmant activities of the Seres Trust. In order fo maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Series Trust's policy is lo perform the following:

« Monitor the leval of daily subscriptions and repurchases ralative to the liquid assats and adjust the amount of
distributions the Series Trusl pays to the holder of redeemeble unils.

« Repurchase and issus naw units in accordance with the constitutional documants of the Saries Trust.
The Manager monilars capital on the basis of the value of net assels atlribulable to the helder of redeemable units.
5.2 Additional Sarias Trust's Risks

(A) Custody Risk

Maither tha Trustes nor tha Manager controls the custedianship of the Saries Trust's entira holding of listad and
unlisted private equily securities. The Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected 1o act as cuslodians may
become insolvenl. causing the Series Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

{B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator. the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entifed to be indemnified oul of the assets of the Series Trust under
cartain circumstancas which may result in a decraase in Nat Assat Valua par unil.

{C) Settlement Risk

Setllement and clearance proceduras in cartain foreign markets differ significantly from thosa in the United States,
the European Union and Japan. Foreign settternent and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve
cartain risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securities) nal typically associaled with the setlement of
United States investments, At times, settlements in cartain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of
securilies transactions. These problems may make it difficull for the Manager (o carry cut transactions for the account
of the Series Trust,

If the Manager cannet settle or is delayed in sefliing & purchase of securities, it may miss atraclive invastmant
opportunities and certain of the Senes Trust's assels may be uninvested with no return eamed thereon for some year.
If tha Manager cannot sattle or is dalayed in sattling a sale of securities, the Series Trust may lose money il the value
af the security then declines or, if it has contractad 1o sell the sacurity to anathar party, the Saries Trust could be
liable for any losses incurred.

(D) Derivatives

The Manager may use derivative instruments to hedge the Seres Trusts investments or 1o seok to enhance the
Series Trusl's returns. Derivatives allow the risk expasure of the Seres Trust to increase or decrease more quickly
and efficiently than other types of instruments. Derivalives are velatile and invelve significant risks. including:

* Credit Risk — the risk that the counterpary (the party on lhe other side of the transaclion) on a dervalive
transaction will be unabla to honer its financial obligation to the Series Trust

* Leverage Risk — the risk associated with cerlain lypes of investments or trading strategies thal relatively small
markel movements may result in large changes in the value of an invastmanl, Certain Investments or trading
strategies that involve leverage can resull in bosses that greally exceed the amount originally invastad.

* Liquidity Risk — the risk that certain securities may be difficult or impossible to sell at the tima that the sallar would
like or at the prica that the seller balisves the security is currently warth,
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The Manager may use derivalives for hadging purposes for the Series Trust, including anticipatory hedges. Hedging
is @ strategy in which the Manager uses a derivative to offset the risks associated with other Series Trusl's holdings.

Whila hedging can reduca losses, it can also reduce or eliminata gains or cause losses if the markel moves in a
mannar diffaerent from that anticipated by the Manager er if the cosi of the derivalive cutweighs the banefit of tha
hedge. Hedging also involves the risk that changes in the value of the derivative will not match thosa of the holdings
being hedged as expacted by the Managar, in which case any losses on the holdings being hedged may not be
reduced and may be increased. There can be no assurance thal the Series Trust's hedaing strategy will reduce risk
ar that hedging transaclions will be either available or cost effective. The Manager is not required to use hadging for
the Series Trust and may choasa not to do 50, Bacause the Manager may use derivalives to ssek to enhanca tha
Sarias Trust's returns, its investments will expose the Saries Trust to the risks outhned above to @ greater extant than
il the Manager used derivalives sclely for hedging purposes. Use of derivalives to seek to enhance relums is
considered speculative,

As of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 thera were no Serles Trust derfvative assate and liabilities subjact to nalting
arrangamanis and similar agraamants.

|E) Counterparly and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterparties, including barks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which
the Managsr or its delagals trades or invasts for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties
and defaull on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such defaull could resull in
material losses o the Senes Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Seres Trust
to the counterparties in order o secure cerain transactions. Na collateral was pladged by tha Manager during the
year ended June 30, 2024.

The Series Trust has nol offset any financial assels or linancial liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position,

(F) Early Termination of the Series Trust
The Final Repurchasa Day will ba brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event ooour,

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation
The Series Trust applies IFRS Accounting Standard 13 Fair value moaswroment, and ulilizes the last raded market
priza for its fair valuation inputs far Bath financial assats and liabilithes.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volumea to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not wraded in an active market is determined by using valuation
tachniques. The Serigs Trust uses a variety of mathods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
axisting al each perod end dale. Valuation tachniquas usad for non-standardized financial instruments such as
options, currency swaps and olher over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm's length
transactions, referance to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option
pricing modals and other valuation techniguas commanly used by market participants making the maximum use of
market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

For instrumants far which thare is no active market the Series Trust may use intermally devalopad models. which are
ususlly based on valuation methods and techniques ganerally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of
the inputs to these models may nol be market observable and are therefore estimaled based on assumptions. Tha
autput of a modal is always an astimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation lachniques employed may not fully reflect all factors ralavant to the positions the Series Trust holds,
Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for addtional factors ncluding modal risk, liquidity risk
and counterparty risk.

The Series Trusl classifies fair value measuraments using a fair valus hiararchy Ihat reflects the significance of tha
inputs usad in making the measurements.
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The fair value higrarchy has the following lavels:

«  Leval 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement dale;

« Level 2 inpuls are inputs other than quoled prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the assel
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

« Laval 3 inputs are unobsarvable inputs for the asset or liability.

Tha level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in ils entiraty
is determined an the basis of the lowas! lavel input that is significant to the fair value measurameant in its entirety. For
this purposa, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value
measurement uses observable inputs thal require significant adjustment based on uncbservable Inputs, that
maasuramant is a Level 3 measuremant Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgmenl considenng factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of whal constitules ‘ohservable’ requires significanl judgment by the Administrator, under
advisement of the Managar. The Adminsirator, under advisement of the Manager, considers observable data to be
that market data that is readily available, regularly distribuled or updated, reliable and werifiable, not proprietary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of June 30, 2024 in valuing the
Series Trust's financial assets:

{Unadjusted)
Cuotad Pricas in
Active Markets for
Idantical Slgnificant Othar Significant
Financlal Assets at Falr Value Investmants Observable Inputs Unobsarvabla Falr Valua at Juna 30,
Through Profit or Loss {Level 1) iLevel 2) Inputs (Level 3) 20
Investment im listed and unlisted
private equity securilies ¥ 2.979.230,633 ¥ - ¥ 34194600 ¥ 0 3353425333
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ¥ 2,579,230,633 ¥ - N 374,194,800 ¥ 3,353,428 233

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inpuls used as of June 30, 2023 in valuing the
Series Trusl's financial assets:

(Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices in
Active Markels for
Identical Significant Other Significant

Financial Assets at Fair Value Investments Observabla Inputs Uncbservable Falr Value at June 30,
Through Profil or Loss {Level 1) {Level 2} Inputs [Level 3) 2023
Imvastment in ksted and unlisted
private equity securitios L] 3,248 943 505 ¥ - ¥ 353,050,200 ¥ 3,599,999.705
Financial assats at fair valua
through profit or loas ¥ 3,246 948,505 W - ¥ 353,051,200 W 3,699,999.705

During the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 thera wara no transfers batwean Levels 1, 2 and 3,

Financlal instruments that trade in markels that are not considered to be sctive bul are valued based on guoted
markat prices, dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within
Level 2. These include over-the-counter dervativas and debt sacurilies. As Level 2 investments include positions that
are not traded in active markets andfor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflact
iliquidity andfor non-transferability, which are generally based on available markel information.
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The following teble shows & reconciliation from opening balances to clesing balances for fair value measuremants in
Level 3 of the fair valuz hierarchy:

Balance at June 30, 2022 ¥ 415688700
Taotal gains or lasas recognized in profit or loss -
Change in unrealized appraciation/{depracialion) (62,537,500}
Purchases =
Zales =
Transfars into Lewvel 3 -
Transfars out of Level 3 -
Balance at June 30, 2023 ¥ 353,051,200
Tolal gains or loses recognizad In profit or koss -
Change in unrealized apprecialion/[depreciation) 21,142,400
Purchases -
Sales -
Transfers intc Level 3 -
Transfers oul of Level 3 -

Balance at June 30, 2024 ¥ 374,194,600

The lable below sets gul information about significant unobservabla inputs used at June 30, 2024 in maasuring
financial instruments calegonzed as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy:

Sensitivity to
Signilicant Range [weighted. changes In
Faiir value at Valuation unobservable average) for Significant
Description Jume 30, 2024 technigue inputs _uncbservable inputs  unobservable inputs
Rapyuta Robolles ¥ 253,955,600 Discountad Discauni Rate 0% 1o 50% The fair value
(2023 ¥ 214 472,200) Cash Flow weonibd increase if
thi Dissount Rata
dacraazes
EWEBITDA S4210 Tha falk valus
Multiple would incraase if
the EV/EDITOA
Mullipla increasas.
Dhiscount for 25% The lak value
Lack of would increase if
Morkctabilty the Discounl for
Lack of
Maretability
decreases.
Infcurion ¥ 80,190,000 Discountad Discounl Rate 20% to 30% The fair value
(202X ¥ 138,579,000} Cash Flow would increase if
the Discounl Rate
decroases.,
EVRavenua 12067 The fair value
Kullipla would increaze if
the EViRevenae
Multiplz increases.
Discaunt for 25% The fair value
Lack of would increase if
Marketability the: Digcount for
Lack of
IMarketabiity
dacTeanes
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Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(il At Junma 30, 2024 and Juna 30 2023, cash and cash equivalants and all other assets and liabilites (including
prepaid fees, receivables for dividends and securilies sold, bank overdrafl and payables for securities
purchased, units repurchased, investment management fees, distibution fzes, fee agent fees, professional
feas, custody fees, administrator feas, registration fees, transfer agant feas, printing feas and agent mambar
company leas) are deemed short-larm financial assets and liabiliies whose canying amounts apgroximals
fair value because of their shori-tlerm nature, Refer to Note 2 for a description of the valuation technigues,

{ii} Mat assats aftributable to the halder of redeamahls units. The Seres Trust repurchasas and issuas the units
at the amounl equal lo the proporiicnale share of nel assets of the Series Trust al the time of repurchase,
calculated on a basis consistent with that used in these financial statements. Accordingly. the carmying
amaunt of nat assats altributable ta the holder of redeamable wnits approximatas thair fair value,

6. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward contracts

The Series Trust invests in forward contracts which are designed to hedge the Senes Trust's exposure to fluctuations
in tha currency rate batwean Japanesa Yen {in which tha Saries Trust and the units are denominated) and currencies
other than JPY. Forward contracts are entered by buying JPY forward contraciz against ather currencies under
narmal circumstances in an amount equal, to the extent possible, Lo approximately 100% of the other currencies
exposure of the MNet Asset Value (excluding unrealized currency gain or losses).

As of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, there were no open forward foreign cumency conlracts invaested in the Senas
Trust,

7. NET GAIN/ LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

June 10, 2024 June 30, 2023
Net gainfilozs) on financlal assats and Babilitiss at fair valus
throagh profit and boss consist of tha following:
Met realized (lass) on invastmants in listed and unlisted
private egqusty securitbas ¥ (133,404 269] W {361,308.233)
het realized gain on investments in forward confracts - 13,558
Tatal net raalized {loss) on financial assals and liahilities al fair
value through prafit or loss £ [133404.269]) (361,384 675)
Mavement in net unmealized appreciation on investments in
listed and unlisted private equity securities W AYTABAGAD ¥ 251,713,705
Total net change in unfealized apprecialion on inancial assels
and liahilitias at fair vakee through profit or loss ¥ 422 Bis4 040 ¥ 251,713,795

8. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
8.1 Fees and Expenses

(&) Administrator Fass

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on tha first US5500 milkan of the nat aszets. 0.05% an the nendt
US3500 million of the net assels and 0.04% an the nel assets over USS1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of
53,750, The faes eamed by the Administrator during the years ended June 30, 2024 end June 30, 2023, and
outstanding feas payable to the Administrator as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, have been disclosed in the
Staternent of Gemprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(B) Custady Faes

The Custodian receives asset based and transactional charges dependant on market demographics of the assels.
The fees eamed by the Custodian during the years ended June 30, 2024 and Juna 30, 2023, and outetanding faes
payable to the Custodian as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, have been disclosed n the Statemnent of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, rezpectivaly.
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SEI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund

MNotes to Financial Statemants (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

{C) Distribution Fees

The Distributor receives an annual fee of 0.60% of the Net Assat Value attributable to the JPY Class Unils payabla
quarterly in arrears, The Distribution Fees are payable by Ihe Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the
assets of the Series Trust. The fees eamed by the Distibutor during the years ended Juns 30, 2024 and Juna 30,
2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Distributor as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, have baen disclosed in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and tha Statarment of Financial Position, respectively.

(D} Transfar Agenl Fees

The Transfer Agent recaives an annual fee of 0.01% of the Net Asset Value and a $10 fee per transaction oul of the
assets of the Saries Trust The fees earnad by the Transler Agant during the years ended June 30, 2024 and June
30, 2023, and cutstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, have been
dizclosed in the Statement of Comprahensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, raspactivaly.

(E) Professional Fees

Professional fees includs legal and audit fees, The fees paid during the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30,
2023, and outstanding fees payable as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Compreheansive Income and the Staternent of Financial Position, respectively.

8.2 Relatad Party Transactions

Parfies are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the olher parly in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager, Agent
Member Comgany, Invesiment Manager and Sub-Investment Manager are all related parties 1o the Series Trust,

There were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(A) Trustee Feas

The Trustee is entilled o receive oul of Ihe Operational Cosls Fee a fixed annual fee of £10,000 paysble annually in
advanca. The faas eamed by the Trustee during the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, and outstanding
feas payabla to the Trustee as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 have been disciosad in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Stalement of Financial Posttion, respactively, as a part of fee agent fees.

{B) Faa Agant Faas

The Fee Agent receives an annual fea of 0.20% of Net Assets Value (the "Operational Cosls Feses”), accrued on and
calculated as al each valuabon day. The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Administralor, on behalf of the
Trustes out of the assets of the Serias Trust, The fees eamed by the Fee Agent during the years ended June 30,
2024 and June 30, 2023, and outstanding fees payabla to the Fes Agent as of June 30, 2024 and June 30 2023,
have been disdosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Posilion,
respeciively.

The Fee Agent is responaible for paying the Manager fees. the Trustee fees and cosls and expenses, which are, in
the reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associaled cosls and expenses of the Manager fees and
Trustea fees (the "Ordinary Costs™).

. routine legal and auditing costs that are not included in the audit fees and expensos;
(i} annual fees payable in respact of the Senas Trust or tha Trust I govammeant bodies and agancias;

(i) communication costs related to investors services and unitholder's meelings, confirmations, financial reporling
and other reporling, proxias, costs ralating to the preparation of the Offering Memorandum and the Appandic 24 and
other similar offering documents and the costs relaling to the praparation, printing, translation and delivary of such
documents; and (iv] insurance costs (if any).

Far the avoidance of doubt, the Fea Agent is nat rasponsibla for the payment of the investment manager faes, audit
fees, formation expenses, dislribution fees, adminisiration fees, custody fees, PEP ressarch and valuation feas
aganl mamber company feas, payment of broker fees relating lo security ransactions and any taxes relaling to the
purchase or disposal of securitias, legal or compensation costs, licansing cosls and any other extracrdinary costs
and expenses that would notl usually oocur,
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Notes to Financial Statements {continued)
Faor tha Year Ended June 3&,__2!]14

(Exprassed in Japanese Yen)

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fee is nol sufficient 1o cover the Ordinary Costs, the Feg Agent is liable for
any outstanding amounts. Any ameunts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs shall be retainad by the
Fee Agent as its remuneration for acling as fee agenl in respect of the Seres Trust.

The Operational Costs Feas ara payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued, from and excluding, for the first
accrual paricd only, the initial closing day, and for all other accrual pericds, the last day of each calendar quarter.

(G} Managar Fees

The Manager is enlitled to receive out of the Operational Cosls Fes, a managament fee of £5,000 per annum payable
monthly in amears. The fees eamed by the Manager during the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, and
outstanding fees payable fo tha Manager as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, have been disclosed in the
Stalement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively, as a part of fee agent
fees.

(D) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agenl Member Company is antiled to recaive a fae of 001% per annum of tha Met Asset Valua payabla
quarterly in arraars. Tha Agant Mamber Company Feas ara paid by the Administrator, on bahalf of the Managar out
of the assets of the Seres Trust. The fees eamed by the Agenl Member Company dunng the years ended June 30,
2024 and June 30, 2023, and outstanding fees payable to the Agent Member Company as of June 30, 2024 and

June 30, 2023, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Stalement of Financial
Pasition, respectivaly.

(E) Investment Management Fees

The Investmant Managar recaives an annual fea of 0.70% of the Net Assat Valua payabla quararly in amears.
The fees eamed by the Investment Manager during the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, and
outstanding fees payable to the Investment Manager as of June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, have been disclosed in
the Statement of Comprahensive Income and the Statement of Financial Paosition, respectively. Tha Investmant
Manager receivas a research and valuation fee related to Privete Equity Portion securities.

8. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Series Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short termm cash flows. During
the years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, the Series Trust did nal incur any borrewings.

10, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Truslee has evaluated all subsequent ransactions and events through Oclaber 31, 2024, the dats on which

thase financial statemante wara available to be issusd. Effective July 1, 2024 through October 31, 2024, there were
redemptions of $350,8583,701. There are no othar subsequent avents o report as relatas to the Saeries Trust
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2024 10

3,062,939

78,351

2,984,588

246,464

12,110
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2024 10

1,828,739,778

9,891,744
13 81,776,616
50,657,735,918
2,153,115,088
19 127,686,005,465
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2023 2022
usD usD
60,034 9,224 14,396 2,212
60,034 9,224 14,396 2,212
60,034 9,224 14,396 2,212
185,000 28,423 205,000 31,496
(25) 0 58 9
245,009 37,643 219,454 33,717
(115,081) (17,681) (112,703) (17,316)
129,928 19,962 106,751 16,401
129,928 19,962 106,751 16,401
129,928 19,962 106,751 16,401
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2023 12 31

2023 2022

usD usD
9 2,249,019 345,539 1,984,033 304,827
10 185,864 28,556 205,864 31,629
2,434,883 374,095 2,189,897 336,456
10 451,584 69,381 336,526 51,704
451,584 69,381 336,526 51,704
11 735,000 112,925 735,000 112,925
1,248,299 191,789 1,118,371 171,827
1,983,299 304,714 1,853,371 284,752
2,434,883 374,095 2,189,897 336,456

2024 14
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2023 12 31
usb usD usD
2023
11 735,000 112,925 1,118,371 171,827 1,853,371 284,752
129,928 19,962 129,928 19,962
12 31 735,000 112,925 1,248,299 191,789 1,983,299 304,714
2022
11 735,000 112,925 1,011,620 155,425 1,746,620 268,351
106,751 16,401 106,751 16,401
12 31 735,000 112,925 1,118,371 171,827 1,853,371 284,752
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2023 12 31
2023 2022
UsD usD

129,928 19,962 106,751 16,401
4 (60,034) (9,224) (14,396) (2,212)
69,894 10,739 92,355 14,189
20,000 3,073 4,999 768
20,000 3,073 4,999 768
115,058 17,678 112,595 17,299
115,058 17,678 112,595 17,299
4 60,034 9,224 14,396 2,212
264,986 40,712 224,345 34,468
264,986 40,712 224,345 34,468
9 1,984,033 304,827 1,759,688 270,358
2,249,019 345,539 1,984,033 304,827
9 2,249,019 345,539 1,984,033 304,827

2,249,019 345,539 1,984,033 304,827
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KY1-1104 309
c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.0.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

2023 12

22.48
37
5.1

2023 12
2024 31
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2023 2022

60,034 14,396

60,034 14,396
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2023 2022
185,000 205,000
185,000 205,000

2023 2022

(48) (50)
(6,390) (6,478)
(108,643) (106,175)
(115,081) (112,703)

2039 10 10
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2023 2022
2,249,019 1,984,033
2,249,019 1,984,033

2023 2022
185,864 205,864
185,864 205,864

2023 2022
451,584 336,526
451,584 336,526

2023 2022

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2023 12 31

2022 12 31
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
185,864 185,864 205,864 205,864
451,584 451,584 336,526 336,526
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,186,584 1,186,584 1,071,526 1,071,526
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
185,000 185,000 205,000 205,000
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13
2023 2022
108,643 106,175
108,643 106,175
14
2023 12 31
15 2023 12 31
2023 12 31
16
2023 12
2024 31 2024
17

2024 14
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LBS Monmprsnd {Ciyman) Linde
Erancial Sistemants Tor f5¢ yoar anded 5T Decaenber 2053

Statement of Income for the year eanded 31 Dacembar 2023

UsD '%im:x 2023 2022
dnterestincoms e oo D003 14355

- frem financial instruments measured af amoriised

cosf 60,034 14,206
Total interest income “ 60,034 14,396
Senvicefestncome R TEEEE T R05,000
“Bifier (lossas)/revanuas ’ ’ ) {5) og
Total revenues 245,008 215,454

‘General, adm nistratve ard oiher operaling expenses B

T TEEET

CEPALD)]

Operating profit before allowance and taxation 129,828 106,751
Profit before tax 128,928 106,751
Inmmeﬁumpensa_‘-a’ e
Profit after tax 129,928 106,751

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finandal statements,
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LAES Meaparcant (Coyran) Linlad
Feanon! Siateranis for the powr évdad 3T Cocambar 2025

Fonbesraan

- nkrarce 2023 2022
BOBalS
Cashandduefombanks e SRR LR
COrther aseats 10 185,864 N6, BEA
Total assets 2,434,883 2,183,897
Lsbilities § R e L ST P SRy ot S I ) T
Cher Fabiltes 10 451,584 395,550
Total liabilities 451,584 336,526
Sharcholders' sguity e e Ry o
Swenptd T U L5 735000 745,000
"Retrined earnings 1,248,299 1,118,371
Total sharaholders’ equity 1,983,299 1,853,371
Tatal liabilities and shareholders’ aquity 2,434 883 2,188,857

Approved and autharised for issue by the board of direciers en 14 June 2024

ieehs Pyt

'i‘}",,.l.té"‘t

%
¢

)
!
i

Diractor

The: accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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UES Maragemeand [Cayman) Limded

Frane! Shalwaents G Bar o anged 31 Dacrdmr 2707

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

UsD

Share cagital

rotained Total
samings

2023

A A R A AR NN AN RN ERA RN R

Balance at TJanuary

Profit for the yoar

LY

-

7. 1853371
128,928 125 598

Balance at 31 Decembar

1,248,299 1,983,299

e

Balance at 1 January

Frafit for the yaar

..135,000

1011620 1,746,620

108,751 106,751

Balance at 31 December

735,000

1,118,2M 1,853,3M

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemants,
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UBE Monaaamant (Tmyman] L eled
Fiaroal Siswaenls G the pear anded 5T Decambar 2005

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

0D Q_;F:];T 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating aclivities

Profit before tax for ihe parod 106,928 105,751
Adjustmenls o reconcile nel profit to net cash

generated from operating activities

Mon-cash items included in net profit before tax

and other adjustments:

Interest Income (60,034) (14,396)
‘Cash gencrated from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 69,804 492,355
MNotdacrense inoperating essels: = = oo e
Oiner gssals 20,000 4,989
Met decrease in operaling assets 20,000 4,999
Netincrease in operating liabilities: e
Crner liabdites 115,058 112,595
Netincrease in operating abilities: _ ........118088 112585
Intarast income received G0 084 14,395
Met cash generated from operating activity 264,986 224,345
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 264,986 224,345
Cash and cash equivalents at the begnning of yaar 1,984,083 1,769,688
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of year 2,249 019 1,984,033
Cash and dua from banks 2249019 1,584,033
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of vear 2,249,019 1,984,033

The sccompanying notes form an integral pad of these finencial statements,
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Motes to the Financial Statements
1.  Principal activities

USS Manzgement (Cayman) Limited {the "Company’) is incorporatad in the Cayman Islands with
limited liabilfy. The Compary's principal activities are the crestion of trusts and the administratien and
management of asssts in trusts, The Company’s registered office is oo Maples Corporate Servicas
Limited, P.C. Bax 300, Ugland House, Grand Caymen KY'1-1104, Caymen [slands.

Key developments during the year

Cn 12 June 2083, UBS Growp AG acguired Credit Suisse Group AG, succesding by operation of
Swies law to all assets and lizbifties of Credt Suisss Group AG, and became the diract or indirect
shareholder of all of the former direct and Indirect subsidaries of Credil Suisse Group AG (the
Transaction].

Upan the completion of the Transaction, sach cutstanding, registered Credit Suisse share converied
te the right o receve, subject to the payment of cerdain fees to the Credit Suisse depository in the
case of Cradit Suisse American depository shares (ADS), the memsr consideration consisting of
1/22.48 UBS Group AG shares. [n aggregate, Credit Sulsse shareholders recefved 5.1% of the
outstanding UBS Greup AG shares on the acquisttion date, with a purchase price of USD 3.7 bilien

In Cecember 2023, the Board of Direclors of UBS Group AG approved the marger of UBS AG and
Credit Suisse AG, and bolh entifies enterad inlo a definitve merger agreement. The marger is
completed on 21 May 2024,

2. Material Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

Thesa financial statements have bean prepared in accordance with all applicable IFRS Accounting
Starwlards, which colective term indudes all applicable individual Intemationsl Financlal Recorting
Standards, International Accourting Standards (l4Ss") and Interpretetions issued by Intemational
Aseeunting Standards Board {'LASE7. A summary of the significant accounting palicies adopted by
the Company Is set out below.

(b) Basiz of preparation of the Financial Statements
The messurement basis used in the preparation of tha financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial siatements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make jwigements, estimates and assumptons that affect the application of polices
and reported ameunts of assets, lizbites, income and expenses. The estimates end associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and varous other factors that are believed fo be
raasonabls under the cireumstancas, the rasults of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carying values of assels and labBties that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual
results may differ from these estmates.

The astimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 2n angelng basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimate is revised I the revision affects only that
peried, of in tha periad of the revizsion and fuluse pededs if the revisian affecls both cument and future
pericds.
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UBS Margoamen (Taymay) Limied
Modes fo Francisl Shlsresls o e paar anded 31 Decerbes F0RT

2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)
(b} Basis of preparation of the Financlal Staterments (continued)
Standards effective in the current period

The group hag appled the folowing new and amended standards for s annual reperting period
commensing 1 January 2023:

. Crefiniticn of Accounting Estimates = Amendments to A5 B
- Disclasure of Acoounting Poldes — Amendments to [AS 1 and IFRS Fractice Statemant 2

The amendments lisled zhovs did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and ara not expactad to significantly attect the cument or fulura periods,

(e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with baniis, and shart-term, highly
liquid invesiments that are readily convedble into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in valua, having bean wihin three months of maturily &l acguisition.

(d) Foreign currency

The Cempany's functicnzl and presentaten curency iz United States Dollars (USDY. Foralge
currency transactions during the year are translated into USD at the forelgn exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Moretary assets and labilies denominated i forelgn currencies are translated
inte USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting pericd. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Nen-monatary assets and dabllities that are measured in terms of kistorical cost in e farsign currancy
are franslated inte USD using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transacHen dates. Nen-
monetary assets and fabdtes dencminated in foreign curendes that are stated at far valee are
translated using the fereign exchange rales ruling at the dates the fair valus was determined, Forsign
currency diferences ailsing on retransiation are recogrised in prafit or loss.

{e) Other asscls

Other assets are inifally recognised at fair value and thoreafter stated &t amortised cost less
Expected Credit Loss ('ECL") {refer to Note Sigl), except where the recehables ars interest-free
Imans made to related parties without any feed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the recelvables are stated at cost less impaiment for bad and doubtful
debls,

{F) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Previsiens are recegrised for llabifties of uncartaln timing or amount when the Company has a legal
of constructive obligation adsing as a result of 2 past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits wil be required to setile the obligation and a relizble estimate cash be made. Where the tms
va'us of monay s matarial, provisions are siated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
setile the coligation,

Whiere itis not prodable that an autfiow of ecenemic banefits will ba required, or the amount cannot

be estimated refably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liabiBty, unless the probabiity of
cutflow of sconemic benefils i remole, Possble obligations, whose existence wil only be confirmed
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2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)
{f} Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

by the ocourrence of non-coqurtence of one of more fulure events are also disclosed as contingent
liabiiittas unlass the prokehilty of autiiow of economiz hanefits is remate,

(@) Impairment

The carmying amount of the Company's assels is reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whather thera is any chieclive evidence of impairment. If any such objective evidence
aists, the assel's recoverabla amount is astmated at the end of each reporting pericd. An
impairmant loss s recognised whenever the carrying amount of en asse! sxcesds its recoverable
amaunt, Impairmant losses are recognisad in the profit or boss,

Under IFRS 9, the impalmiant requirements apply primarily te financial assets measured at amerised
cost. The impairment requirements are based on a forward-looking expected credit loss model by
incorporating reasonable and supperlabls forecasts of fulure economic conditions avadable at the
raporting date. This requires considerable judgement over how changas in economic factors affect
ECLs, which is determined on a probability-weightad basis.

(k] Revenue recognition

Prowided that it is probable that the econcmic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and
ceels, if applicable, can be measured reliably, servica fes incoma is recognised in profit or loss when
the invesiment managemant sanvice is provided,

{i} Expensas
Al expenses ane recogrised in profit and loss on an acorual basis.
(i) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial staternents, a party is considered o be related to the Company if:
(a) A person, o7 a close member of that person's family, is re‘ated to the Company if that person;
(il has control or joint control over the Campany; 2
(M has significant influence over the Company,; or
iy is a member of the key management parscnnel of the Campany or the Company's
parent

B]  An entity is related to the Company if any of tha falowing cerditions appliss:

(0 Tha enlity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related o the others).

(i Orne entty Is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an asseciate or joint
verture of & member of a groug of which the ather entity is a mamber).

(i) Baolth antities ate joint ventures of the same third party.

()  Cne antity is a joint venture of a third parly and the olher ertily is an asscdats of the
third party.

(v)  The entity is 2 poest-emplayment banefit plan for the benefit of employess of aither the
Company of an entity related to the Cempany.

vy The entiy is controlled or jeintly controlled by a person identified in (2,

(vil) A parson identfiad n (2} has significant influence over the setity or iz 8 member of the
key mansgement parsonnel of e eniity (or of a parent of 1he anlity).
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2,  Material Accounting Policies (continued)
(i) Ralated parties (continued)

Close members of the family of & person are those family members who may be expscied to
influence, or ba influanced by, that parson in thelr dealings wih the anlity.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The 1458 has issued a numbar of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that are first effective
for the curent sccounting period of the Company. The adoption of thess amendments had no
rratarial imaact to the Company’s financial pasition, result of operations or cash Mlows,

The Company has not apeled any new standard o interpretation that ks net yet affeclive for the
current accounting period (Mete 15).

4. Total Irterest Income

usp 2023 2022
Tnta! mterest income -

= S e s ----Eﬂmtﬂ-ldam
otal interest income 60,034 14,396

All the above interast income on firancial instruments measured af amortised cost.
6. Service Fee Income

The prncipel actvites of the Company are the creation of trusis and the sdminlstration and
management of assets i trusts.

Revenue represents investment management fee income eamed from fellow subsidlary as follows:

UsD 2023 022
Tom] s'm“m mcm AEEEEEEE S A LA LSS BRI S S AN S S AR RS - [P P,

‘Service fes ncome 185, 000 B]'E,Ft_'l{!ﬂ
Total service fee income 185,000 205,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usD 2023 2022
General administrative and other operaling expenges

Bun!-: d-m g&s (4B) [“ U}
Audceromuneralion e, ER00) 16 478)
‘Cirectors' remuneration 108843 (106,175)
Total general administrative and other operating expenses (115,081) {112,703}

All of tha above expenditures are payzble to the Company’s immediate holding company and the
immediate holding company setles such expenditures on behall of the Company.
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7. Taxation

There ara no taxes on income of gains i the Cayman Islands and the Company has received an
undertaking from the Governar in Coundl of the Cayman lslands sxampting it from all loeal income,
prefits and capital taces uetil 10 Getobar 2038, Accordingly, no prevision for income taxes s included
in these financial statemenis.

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Spensonad unconsalicaled struclurad antiies

The Cormpany considers itsefl the sponsor of a structhured entity whean ether [ts name apgears in the
name of the stuctured entity or in products Issuad by it or there is a general expectation from the
maricet that the Comaany is associated with the structured entfty or the Company was invobeed in the
design or sat up of the structused entity and has a form of involvement with the structured entity,

The helrw unconsofidated structured antities are: sponsared by fhe Company whera a fued annual

management fee of USD 5000 (2022: USD 6,000) is reseived but no interast s hald by the
Company as at 31 Decamber 2023
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8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities (continued)

Glubal Select Carry smag} Fund

E-ID-':-aI REIT Triple Fremium

'US High Div Equily Premium Fund (For Gualfied Institufional Investors Onlg)”
Premium Fund {Fnr Clualified hsﬂtutun-.aj Imruturs Onby
DM Eme-‘qmg Local h-“a.'tﬂt Eund urd 'Fur GuaHrad In:hb.'huna;] imvestors Dnlgj

LS F'rafarrsd REI'I' nmme Fund lfFur Oual-ﬁad Insitutional n'l‘ﬂ‘.’:h'sl‘:'?ﬂl:j;}

AR E L

Japan Eq..nl:y Preuﬂmm Fur..d {For Qualified Ins’trtubal;a;l

"NB/MYAM US REIT Income Fund (For Quaified Instituticnal investors Only)

Daiva, UK High Dividend Exufy Fund (For Qualified instiut onal Invesiers Onb)
|_L Ventures II] L P Fund
“Erazi Eg mtf ""pha Eand {'Fur Diaified nstitional investors Onl;.r]

Daiwa Brazilian Real Bond Fund (For Qualfied instiufioral imvestors Only)

“Nissay Japan Equity Acive Fund (o Guaiited institutional invesiors Onlyy
AME Australia REIT Fun {Fn_n: pggl_lf,ad Insﬁmﬁcnaf Imrempﬁ_m
T and Real Estate - Ecuigy Fund {Ful Gt.alrﬁnd mmnmw I-wcﬁm Or]:.r“

Fund [For Qualifed Instiutional Investors Gnlyl

B

rEmmsmamEny

“Taiwa American Hgh Dividend Equity Ouattre reome Fund (Fer Cualffied Insttitional nvestars

qu_.-
D-a.ma. ﬁmmmn H*‘.—.IT Chuattre Inma Fun {!‘

“US REIT Triphe Engine Fius Fur._d_{Fu_puauﬂm Trstiutional rwestors Onky

US Municipal Boné Fi.md

:I:E#‘;.!;i;ma C}!."'Bnnd Fund T L_ I
“Giohai High Dividend Eq“t".’ Pramium Fand (For Cuaiie
.'u'etsta‘s Collection

F'1MCD Sl'n*l: Tarm S‘tmmgy i
“Diaiwea J-REIT Covered Cal Fund | (For Qalified Institufcnal Invesices Onlyl

“Foreign Deneminated Man AHL Smarl Leverage Stiaiegy Fund
SH ag‘.ﬂl.‘-’\sﬂ Hl—Tad‘l Uﬂn,.ure Funu

AUD Shn.'l Form Bond Fend

VS Dmamic Growh Fund .
Pramium Carry Strategy Fund

* The funds ware terminated during 2023,

B T T T

RN R A T N R RSN

e

e TP T

The Company has not provided financial of ofher supaodt to usconsolidated structured antities that it

was not contractually reguined to pravide.

The Company does nct currently have the intemtion to provide financial or cther supoet to

unconsolidated structured entitizs that it is not contractually required to provide.

13
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9. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash eguivaionis comprise:

UsD 2023 2022
Cash and due from banks
Cash and due from hanks £,245019 1,984 053
Total cash and due from banks 2,249,019 1,984,033
10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities
Uso 2023 2022
Other assets
Intarast and feas recababla 1BE BG4 206 264
Total other assets 185,864 205,864
uso _ 2023 2022
Cther liabilities
Interest and fees payable 451 B4 336,606
Total other liabilties 451,584 336,526
11. Share Capital
{m) Authorised and issued share capital
2023
Mo, of ushD No, of UsD
shares shares

Autherised: _
Crdinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1.000,000 1,000000
Issued and fully paid up: _ _ _ s
Crdinary snares Ta5 00 736,000 T365,000 735,000

The holders of ordinary shases are antithed to receive dividends as declared from tme lo fime and are
entited to ana vote per share at general mestings of the Company. All crdinary sheres rank equally

with ragard to the Compary' s residual assets
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11. Share Capital (continued}
(b} Capital management

The Company's primary obiectves when managng capital are to safeguard the Company’s abiliy to
continue as & guing concem so thet & can confnue to provide returns to shareholders, by picing
services commeansurately with the level of risk and by securing access te finance at a reascnable
cost. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sources of additional capitel and
palicies for distribuiion of excess capital may also be affected by the group’s capital management
chjectives. The Company dafines “capital® as including al componeants of equity.

The Company's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with cus regard to the capitel
menagement practices of the group o which the Company befongs, Adjustments are made fo the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group, te
the extent that thase do not confiict with the directars'’ fiduciary duties towards the Cempany.

The Company was nct subject to extemally imposed capital requirements in tha current period
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credi, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currancy risks arises in the romal course of the
Company's business. Thess risks ar2 managed by the Cempany's tnancial management palicies and
practices descrived below.

() Credit risk

The Compary's cradit risk s primarily atiributabla to amounts dus from group companies and cash at
bank., Credt risk s detined as risk that ong party to & finandal instrumant will cause & financial loss to
angther party by failing to discharge an obligation. Managemant regu'arly monters ifs risk exposure to
ensure that its credit rsk s kept to & minimal level, The maximum exposure to credit sk is
represented by the camying amount of sach financial asset in the stalement of financial posilien afler
daducting any impaimnent ellzwance.

{b) Liquidity risk

The Company's policy is to regulary menitor its Bquidity requirements to satisfy its contractual and
reasonably forasseatle obligations a5 they fall due.

At 31 Cecember 2023 and 2022, all of the Company's financial Fabilties, whicn includes all creditors
and accruals, are on demand or undaled and are expected io be setlled between thwee to twelve
menths.

{e) Interest rate risk

The Company |s exposad to irterest rate fsk only to the extant that [t eams banic interest en cash
and depesits. At 31 December 2023 and 2022, a change in interest rates would have no direct
material effect on the carrying value of the recognised assets or liabiitiss of the Company.

15
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12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
{d) Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign curency risk primarily threugh certain transactions which give rise
to payables that are dencminated in Hong Keong dellars {HKD"), As the HKD is pegged to the USD,
the Company considers that tha risk of movemeants in exchange rates betwsen USD and HKD to ba
insignificant.

{e) Fair values

The camying amcunts of the Company's financial instruments carried at cost or amertised cost are
nct matenialy different from their fair valus as at 31 December 2023 and 2022,

13. WMaterial Related Parly Transactions

In addition to the fransactions and bafances disclosed elsewhers In the fnanciel statements, the
Company entered into the follewing material related party transactions

(a) Related party balance sheel transactions

31 Dacember 2023 31 Dacembar 2022
Parant Fallow Total Parent Fellow Total
Group Group
Ush Cermpanies Companies
Assets
Erlhe- BESES - 185,884 165 564 - 205,854 205854
Total assets - 185,864 185,864 s 206,864 205,884
Liabilites and
Equity
Otver lablles ... 390804 D 300008 S3CODS T 235536
Srare capital 735,000 — U FERDOT T TERNOD — ARG
Tetal labilites snd
shareholders’
equity 1,186,584 = 1,186,584 1,071,626 — 1,071,526
16
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13.  Material Related Parly Transactions (continued)

(B} Related party revenues and expenses

31 Dacomber 2023 31 Decamber 2022
Parant Fellow Tetal Parant Fedlener Total
Group Group
LISD Companias Companies
Revenuas
Servicafesiocoms .. JBS000 188000 - 205000 206,000
Total revenues - 185,000 185,000 - 205,000 206,000

{c) Remuneralion of key management personnel

Remuneration of key rmanagement personne (USD) 2023 2022
Director's Fes 108,543 108,178
Tetal Remuneration of key management persannel 108,643 106,175

14. Parent and Ultimate Helding Company

At 31 December 2023, the immediate parent of the Company is Credit Sulsse (Hang Hong) Limited,
which s Incorporated In Hang Kong and the ukimate cantroling party of tha Company s UBS Group
AG, which is incerperated In Switzadand. UBS Greup AG produces financial statemants avalasle for

putlic use.

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yat effective for the year ended 31 December 2023

Certain new accounting slandards, amendments to accounfing standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2092 reporting periods and have net been
early adopted by the Campany. Thasa standards, emendments or inferpratations are not expeciad o
have a material impact on the entty in the current or future reporting periods and on foraseeable
future transactions,

16. Subsequent Events

In Decernber 2023, the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AS and
Credit Suisse AG, and beth entities entered inte a defintive menger agresment. The merger i
completed on 31 May 2024,

Effective 1 March 2024, the rame of Credt Suisse Management {Cayman) Limited has besn
changed to UBS Managameant (Cayman) Limilad.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financal stetemenis weare epproved for Bsue by the board of directors of the Compeny on 14
June 2024,
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee

KPMGLLP

P.O. Box493

SIX Cricket Square Grand Cayman KY 1-1106 Cayman Islands
Tel +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345 949 7164

Web www.kpmg.com/ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SBI-PICTET Asia Hi-Tech Venture Fund (the "Series Trust"), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of the
Series Trust as at June 30, 2024, and its financia performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS Accounting
Standards’").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAS"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the "Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section
of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International |ndependence Standards)
("IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series
Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series
Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

October 31, 2024
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors of UBS Management Cayman Limited
formerly known as Credit Suisse Management Cayman Limited

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of UBS Management Cayman Limited formerly known as Credit Suisse Management
Cayman Limited the" Company” , which are set out on pages 4 to 17, comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;
the statement of income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory

information

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing “ISAS’ . Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of

our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
including International Independence Standards issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants

“IESBA Code” , and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor's Report  continued

To the Board of Directors of UBS Management Cayman Limited
formerly known as Credit Suisse Management Cayman Limited
Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability

Responsibilities of Directorsfor the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financia statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor's Report  continued
To the Board of Directors of UBS Management Cayman Limited
formerly known as Credit Suisse Management Cayman Limited

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability

Auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements continued

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ahility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2024
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